Public Document Pack

Contact: Jacqui Hurst
Cabinet Secretary
Direct: 020 8132 1207
or Ext:1207
e-mail: jacqui.hurst@enfield.gov.uk

THE CABINET
Wednesday, 21st April, 2021 at 7.15 pm
Virtual Meeting/Remote - Please use the links on the agenda front
sheet to join the virtual meeting
Please click Here to view the meeting or copy and paste the link below into your web
browser:
https://bit.ly/3mFkVbK
Membership:
Councillors : Nesil Caliskan (Leader of the Council), Ian Barnes (Deputy Leader of
the Council), Alev Cazimoglu (Cabinet Member for Health & Social Care),
Guney Dogan (Cabinet Member for Environment and Sustainability), Rick Jewell
(Cabinet Member for Children's Services), Nneka Keazor (Cabinet Member for
Community Safety & Cohesion), Mary Maguire (Cabinet Member for Finance &
Procurement),
Gina Needs
(Cabinet
Member
for
Social
Housing),
George Savva MBE (Cabinet Member for Licensing & Regulatory Services) and
Mahtab Uddin (Cabinet Member for Public Health)

Associate Cabinet Members
Note: The Associate Cabinet Member posts are non-executive, with no voting rights
at Cabinet. Associate Cabinet Members are accountable to Cabinet and are invited
to attend Cabinet meetings.
Mustafa Cetinkaya (Associate Cabinet Member – Non Voting), Katherine Chibah
(Associate Cabinet Member – Non Voting), Ergin Erbil (Associate Cabinet Member –
Non Voting) and Ahmet Hasan (Associate Cabinet Member – Non Voting)

NOTE: CONDUCT AT MEETINGS OF THE CABINET
Members of the public and representatives of the press are entitled to attend
meetings of the Cabinet and to remain and hear discussions on matters within Part 1
of the agenda which is the public part of the meeting. They are not however, entitled
to participate in any discussions.
AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members of the Cabinet are invited to identify any disclosable pecuniary,
other pecuniary or non pecuniary interests relevant to items on the agenda.

3.

DEPUTATIONS
To note, that no requests for deputations have been received for presentation
to this Cabinet meeting.

4.

MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)
To confirm the minutes of the previous Cabinet meeting held on 3 March
2021.

5.

ASSOCIATE CABINET MEMBER WORK PROGRAMMES (Pages 7 - 14)
To receive and note the attached Associate Cabinet Members’ Work
Programmes 2020/21.

6.

QUARTERLY CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages 15 - 56)
A report from the Executive Director Resources is attached. (Non key)

7.

USE OF HIGH NEEDS BLOCK FUNDING TO SUPPORT EARLY
INTERVENTION FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE (Pages 57 - 90)
A report from the Executive Director People is attached. (Key decision –
reference number 5296)

8.

BUILD THE CHANGE PROGRAMME (Pages 91 - 110)
A report from the Executive Director Place is attached. (Key decision –
reference number 5280)
(This item contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3
(information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person – including the authority holding that information) of Schedule 12A to
the Local Government Act 1972, as amended).

9.

TENDERING EXTRA CARE SERVICE (Pages 111 - 126)
A report from the Executive Director People is attached. (Key decision –
reference number 5184)
(This item contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3
(information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person – including the authority holding that information) of Schedule 12A to
the Local Government Act 1972, as amended).

10.

CABINET AGENDA PLANNING - FUTURE ITEMS (Pages 127 - 128)
Attached for information is a provisional list of items scheduled for future
Cabinet meetings.

11.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
To note that this is the last scheduled Cabinet meeting in the current
municipal year. Cabinet dates for the new municipal year 2021/22 will be
advised following agreement of the Council’s calendar of meetings.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

CABINET - 3.3.2021

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 3 MARCH 2021
COUNCILLORS
PRESENT

Nesil Caliskan (Leader of the Council), Ian Barnes (Deputy
Leader), Alev Cazimoglu (Cabinet Member for Health and
Social Care), Rick Jewell (Cabinet Member for Children's
Services), Nneka Keazor (Cabinet Member for Community
Safety and Cohesion), Mary Maguire (Cabinet Member for
Finance and Procurement), Gina Needs (Cabinet Member for
Social Housing), George Savva MBE (Cabinet Member for
Licensing and Regulatory Services) and Mahtab Uddin
(Cabinet Member for Public Health)
Associate Cabinet Members (Non-Executive and NonVoting): Mustafa Cetinkaya (Enfield South East), Ergin Erbil
(Non-Geographical) and Katherine Chibah (Enfield West)

ABSENT

Guney Dogan (Cabinet Member for Environment and
Sustainability), Ahmet Hasan (Associate Cabinet Member –
Enfield North)

OFFICERS:

Ian Davis (Chief Executive), Sarah Cary (Executive Director
Place), Tony Theodoulou (Executive Director People), Fay
Hammond (Executive Director Resources), Jeremy Chambers
(Director of Law and Governance), Sue Nelson (Director of
Customer Experience, Customer Services & Information),
Geoff Waterton (Head of Collection Services), Will Wraxall
(Shareholder and Commercial Partnerships Manager), Claire
Johnson (Head of Registration Services and Governance and
Scrutiny) and Clare Bryant (Senior Governance Officer)

1
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Dogan (Cabinet Member
for Environment and Sustainability).
2
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
3
DEPUTATIONS
NOTED, that no requests for deputations had been received for presentation
to this Cabinet meeting.

Page 2
CABINET - 3.3.2021

4
MINUTES
AGREED, that the minutes of the previous meeting of the Cabinet held on 3
February 2021 be confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.
5
FAIR DEBT AND INCOME STRATEGY
Councillor Mary Maguire (Cabinet Member for Finance and Procurement)
introduced the report of the Executive Director Resources seeking approval of
the proposed Fair Debt and Income Strategy.
NOTED
1.

2.
3.

That this Strategy replaced the Debt Policy that had not been refreshed
for some time. It would implement a progressive approach to the
management of debt and income in Enfield.
It would improve access to benefit advice and debt support to
residents.
The recommendations from the Poverty Commission report have had
an input into the Strategy to ensure a fair approach to debt
management. Poverty is a feature of all inequality that exists within the
borough.

Alternative Options Considered: None applicable to this report.
DECISION: The Cabinet agreed to
1.

Approve the new Fair Debt and Income Strategy detailed in Appendix 1
of the report. The objectives of the Strategy were to: maximise
collection; increase income; minimise the cost of collection; protect
vulnerable and low income households; improve the provision of coordinated debt, benefit and other advice; provide accessible and
consistent transactions for collection service customers, including local
businesses; and, protect the public purse.

2.

Note that individual action plans to deliver each objective would be
monitored by the Fair Debt and Income Board. Some individual work
programmes had already been agreed and underway and others would
require further work either within the existing resources of the services
or using normal Council project authorisation processes. Individual
collection procedures would be amended to reflect the new strategy.

3.

Agree that the Fair Debt and Income Strategy would be reviewed
annually to ensure it remains fit for purpose, particularly with regard to
the evolving pandemic and subsequent recession.

Page 3
CABINET - 3.3.2021

Reasons: Enfield faced an unprecedented challenge to its collection services
due to: COVID 19 and the emerging recession; the increase in personal
indebtedness; welfare reform cuts in financial support to benefit recipients; the
need to deliver service efficiencies and savings.
To protect the Collection Fund, Housing Revenue Account and other essential
income the Council must enhance and adapt processes to: maximise income;
minimise the cost of collection; protect the vulnerable/low income households;
sustain tenancies to minimise evictions from social housing; improve the
provision of co-ordinated debt, benefit and other advice; provide easy,
consistent access for customers to transact with the collection services,
including local business.
(Key decision – reference number 5207)
6
UPDATED SCHOOL CONDITION AND FIRE SAFETY PROGRAMME
2021/22 TO 2022/23 (SCHOOLS CAPITAL PROGRAMME)
Councillor Rick Jewell (Cabinet Member for Children’s Services) introduced
the report of the Executive Director People outlining the Council’s landlord
responsibilities undertaking major capital projects at school buildings to
ensure the safety and wellbeing of school pupils and staff, whilst also
maintaining the Council’s assets.
NOTED
1.

2.
3.

That the Council maintains the responsibility for major items of repair in
schools, and employ the latest technology and energy saving
improvements.
Central Government are undertaking a spending review and
announcements on allocations are expected in April 2021.
A summit will be set up in the Summer 2021 for all schools and
academies on measures to reduce climate changes.

Alternative Options Considered: NOTED, that projects had been prioritised
for inclusion in the Programme based on technical information in condition
surveys commissioned by Construction Maintenance and Facilities
Management Team (CMFM) through external consultants.
DECISION: The Cabinet agreed
1.

The proposed programme of works including professional and technical
expenses detailed in Appendix 1 to the report (containing exempt
information); and, allowance for emergency schemes proceeding up to
the total three-year indicative programme value of £40m and become
part of the Council’s future capital programme.

2.

Grant the approval to spend the 2021/22 and 2022/23 Capital Budget
of £31.173m and £3.578m as approved in KD 5210 (Cabinet – 3
February 2021).

Page 4
CABINET - 3.3.2021

3.

As previously agreed by Cabinet, approval of the Condition and Fire
Safety Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22 to continue to delegate
authority to the Executive Director People to:
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Approve tenders for individual schemes or schemes of
aggregated value up to a maximum of £500,000 including
professional and technical expenses.
Manage the programme individual project budgets so that
overall budget remains within approved resources. This was to
take account of variations between estimates and tender return
costs and the potential need to substitute schemes having a
greater technical priority if the need arises; and
Allocate any contingency provision (up to a maximum of
£350,000 including professional and technical expenses) to
emergency projects and/or to schemes identified as priority but
not yet programmed.

4.

To note the procurement and award of works contracts including
entering into the contracts for each would conform to the Council’s
Procurement rules and Constitution.

5.

To note that the contract award for professional services and works
above £500,000 would also confirm to the Council’s Constitution with
approval sought at the appropriate authority level.

Reasons: Under the Scheme for Financial Schools, the Council retained
responsibility for major items of repair in schools. A programme of projects
had been collated to rectify and repairs items of a high technical or strategic
priority for consideration in 2021/22 to 2022/23.
The Council had Corporate Landlord responsibility for major works at schools
and employed the latest technology and energy saving improvements to meet
the Climate Change Agenda.
The Schools’ capital programme was entirely funded from Central
Government Grants and Section 106 Developer contributions.
(Key decision – reference number 5276)
7
CABINET AGENDA PLANNING - FUTURE ITEMS
NOTED, for information, the provisional list of items scheduled for future
Cabinet meetings.
8
DATE OF NEXT MEETING
NOTED, that the next Cabinet meeting was scheduled to take place on
Wednesday 21 April 2020 at 7.15pm.
9

Page 5
CABINET - 3.3.2021

COMPANY BUSINESS PLAN UPDATES
Councillor Mary Maguire (Cabinet Member for Finance and Procurement)
introduced the report of the Director of Law and Governance providing the
business (or operating) plans for the Council’s wholly owned trading
companies.
NOTED
1.

2.

The Housing Gateway Limited (HGL) has provided 550 homes,
provided the Council with £9million savings since its creations, assisted
800 families into sustainable accommodation and is expecting a pre-tax
profit of over £1million by the end of 2021.
The Forward Plan for the HGL is to deliver a further 300 properties by
the end of 2024 and deliver Enfield Let, a sustainable letting agency.

Alternative Options Considered: NOTED, the detailed options that had
been considered as detailed in paragraphs 67 to 70 of the report.
10
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED in accordance with Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act
1972 to exclude the press and public from the virtual meeting for the item of
business listed as part two on the agenda on the grounds that it involves the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 (information
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including
the authority holding that information) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order
2006).
11
COMPANY BUSINESS PLAN UPDATES - PART 2
Councillor Mary Maguire (Cabinet Member for Finance and Procurement)
introduced the report of the Director of Law and Governance providing the
business (or operating) plans for the Council’s wholly owned trading
companies.
NOTED
1. The information in the Part 2 appendices.
2. That Energetic have been asked to review its funding options.

DECISION: The Cabinet agreed to
1.

Approve the updated Business Plan of Housing Gateway Ltd. (HGL) for
the period 2021-2024.

Page 6
CABINET - 3.3.2021

2.

Note and support the updated Operating Plan of Energetik for the
period 2020-2023.

3.

Note the ongoing discussions between Energetik and the London
Borough of Haringey and London Borough of Hackney to supply heat
to residents of other north London boroughs, as included in the
Energetik operating plan.

4.

Note the potential in-borough expansions proposed by Energetik, which
were currently under consideration by officers as part of a wider
strategic review on the future direction of the company.

Reasons: The Council as sole shareholder of HGL reviewed and approved
the business plan annually. The proposal for the company this year
represented a continuation of business plans and models approved in
previous years.
Energetik operated a two-tiered planning structure. The company works
towards its 40-year business plan, the most recent update to which had been
approved by Cabinet in September 2019. This was supported by a rolling
three-year Operating Plan, which set out the key deliverables required over
the next three years to achieve the overarching business plan.
Energetik’s Operating Plan did not require the Council’s approval as
shareholder, however it was reported to Cab in the interests of transparency
and good relationships between the shareholder and the company, and in
order to enable Cabinet to effectively conduct its role of overseeing the
forward strategic direction of the company.
(Key decision – reference number 5277)
Cabinet Members noted that ongoing investment was required for Energetic to
continue to grow. Cabinet Members also noted that considerable Council
finances had already gone into Energetic and that careful consideration
needed to be given whether future investment was affordable to the Council.
Members noted that the company had to date been successful in the delivery
of its business plan and was on track to make a profit in line with the original
timeline, however, going forward alternative sources of funding, other than
from the Council, may be the preferred option. Cabinet agreed to formally ask
the Directors of Energetic to explore business model options as soon as
possible.

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

1

Associate Cabinet Member Work Programme 2020/2021
Councillor Katherine Chibah, Enfield West – Elected July 2020
Groups Chaired as ACM
Environment Forum – the Forum has met nine times since July 2020. It has
covered a diverse number of matters relating to the built and natural environment
across the borough.
Trent Country Park Stakeholder Group – The Group has met twice since June
2020 and with two additional informal walk abouts (online during lockdown and in the
Park in non-lockdown). Meetings enable residents and other stakeholders to share
views with event organisers for festivals in the summer period as well as raising
other issues of concern about the park with relevant bodies.
Broomfield House Partnerships and Liaisons Boards – COVID pressures
including property service supporting the NHS, staff capacity, and budget constraints
mean that the feasibility options work to facilitate repair and redevelopment were
paused last summer without fixed proposals. Options evaluation, including
engagement with Historic England and residents will resume in the late spring of this
year.
Cabinet Meetings
ACMs are non-voting attendees of cabinet meetings. I have attended cabinet
meetings and contribute to report discussions by raising issues relevant to matters in
Enfield West. I will continue to do so that the viewpoint of Enfield West is heard
before reports are voted on at Cabinet.

Key areas
1) Parks and Events
Actions:




To continue to encourage feedback from community engagement via the TCP
meetings / walk abouts.
To facilitate dialogue between stakeholders, event organisers and officers as
well as other parties with involvement in the park such as Thames Water.
To feedback views expressed and discussion outcomes to cabinet and
relevant portfolio holders.

Page 8
2

2) Environmental Issues
Actions:




Encourage feedback from residents through community engagement via the
Environment Forum to be fed back to planning committee as per its
constitution.
Feedback to Cabinet / Portfolio Holders on matters discussed with
Environment Forum stakeholders. Items included so far; Under 18s and
Concessionary Travel; Bus Economics; Impact on Covid 19 on public
transport; Expansion of the ULEZ; Public Realm changes to support walking
and cycling; Community Initiatives to promote environmental sustainability
(Firs Farms Wetlands; Enfield Society Tree Planting and Rewilding);
Government Housing Retrofit Programme; Schools Retrofit Programme; Air
Quality in the Borough; Development of the Green Infrastructure and Parks
Strategy; Enforcement in the Green Belt; Major Applications in Conservation
Areas; Workshop on Housing Needs, Capacity and Design of Buildings;
Future Landscape of Planning (including white paper and extension of
permitted development)

3) Town Centres, Growth Planning and the Pandemic





Town centres in Enfield West are a key priority and include Enfield Town,
Palmers Green, Arnos Grove, Southgate, Cockfosters.
In addition to previous pressures, our town centres are struggling due to
Covid 19. When it comes to proposed developments, key considerations
include balancing increased populations from new developments, the needs
of local businesses and the necessary community infrastructure needed in our
town centres.
Further key considerations for proposals include; height, affordability,
suitability and character of developments, especially in historic town centres.
Actions:





Through cabinet members, to support all ongoing engagement and shaping of
future plans to support the local economy either throughout lock down
measures, or as the economy begins to recover.
To continue working with cabinet members to review proposals for high
streets and town centres, providing context, insight and feedback gained from
community engagement via the Environment Forum and other resident
engagement.

Page 9

Associate Cabinet Member (Enfield South East) Work Plan Priorities 2020/20
Associate Cabinet Members are non-voting attendees of cabinet meetings. However,
I have ensured that I attended all cabinet meetings and take part in discussions on
policy and matters relevant to matters in Enfield South East.
Engagement with Edmonton residents to gather views on key issues and
consult
-

Arrange Area Ward Forum meetings
Engage with Edmonton based community groups
Engage with Friends of the Park Groups

The last Area Ward Forum meeting for Enfield South was held in January 2020. Due
to the coronavirus pandemic Area Ward Forum meetings had to be cancelled for the
remainder of the year. However, I have continued to correspondence and speak to
residents over the phone.
Key issues identified
-

Fly tipping hotspots.
Crime and antisocial behaviour, specially issues relating to prostitution on
Fore Street.
Further information from NLWA about the Energy Recovery Facility.
Residents continued involvement in the shaping and codesign of the Meridian
Water project so that the scheme benefits local residents.
Residents and local businesses have overall welcomed development plans at
Edmonton Green Shopping Centre, although they want engagement to
continue so to shape any future development in the area.

Support for the Enfield Stands Together Campaign
-

Work with Edmonton ward councillors and community groups to support the
council’s Together Campaign.
Actively contact local businesses to request for food and financial donations
for the council’s supply centre.

Engage with local businesses
-

Promote the support available to local businesses during the coronavirus
crisis.
Actively engaged with local businesses to understand the challenges faced
and feedback key issues to Economic Development team.

Page 10

Key issues identified
-

Business rate relief and support grants needed to assist local businesses to
survive during the coronavirus crisis.
Flexible licensing for restaurant, cafes and pubs.
Residents and businesses have welcomed the Good Growth investment plans
for the Fore Street, including a community centre.

Page 11

DATE: 2020/2021
Cllr Ahmet Hasan
Associate Cabinet Member, Enfield North
Work Plan Priorities


Attended cabinet meetings and contribute to discussions by raising issues
relevant to matters in Enfield North.



Support Enfield Council in disseminating Covid-19 public health messages to
resident in Enfield North.



Assist the Enfield Stands Together Campaign, including working with
residents to produce bedding and wash bags for our local NHS hospitals.



Engage with local businesses to find out problems they face and help they
need from Enfield Council.



Support and engage local community groups.



Feedback to council officers fly tipping and street cleaning issues.



Represent the views of residents relating to housing repairs issues in council
property.



Support the council to find a long-term solution for the Brimsdown Sports
Centre site.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 13

ASSOCIATE CABINET MEMBER (NON-GEOGRAPHICAL AND YOUNG PEOPLE) WORK PLAN
2021

Background
At the Annual Full Council meeting on 1 July 2020, Council approved the addition of a fourth
Associate Cabinet Member (ACM) role, with the focus of Children and Young People. This post will
link into the Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Panel. This is in addition to the three existing
ACMs that currently cover three geographical areas in the borough: Enfield West, Enfield North and
Enfield South East.
Cllr Erbil currently chairs the Equalities Board. This Board oversees the Council’s processes to
oversee its processes to climate discrimination on the protected characteristics. The Board also
supports the Council’s wider efforts to put diversity, equality and inclusion at the heart of policy
making at the Council.

Priorities and Actions 2021
This work plan provides an update to Cabinet on the priority areas and actions of the Associate
Cabinet Member for Young People:

Priority One
Young People & Community Safety
Actions




To focus on key causes of serious youth violence and promote positive opportunities for
young people in Enfield, with focus on employment, sense of belonging and mental
health.
Support the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and Cabinet Member for Community
Safety & Cohesion to support them with key projects that promote opportunities for
young people and tackle the causes of serious youth violence.
To support the progress of Council policies aimed at strengthening protection and
safeguarding of children and young people. Taking a holistic and multi-faceted approach
working in partnership and alongside children, their parents/carers and the wider
community.

Priority Two
Support job employment and skills opportunities for young people

Actions

Page 14






To support the creation of employment and skills opportunities for young people in
Enfield. To focus on job creation, growth and supporting economic recovery as young
people will be one of the most impacted groups from the pandemic. To support the
Cabinet Member for Finance & Procurement and Council Leader to develop the Council’s
response economic recovery and focus on the needs of young people.
To continue to actively engage with local Black, Asian and other ethnic minority
businesses who would benefit from greater support, advice and guidance. To provide
young people with greater support at local businesses level to grow and upskill.
To work with Council Services and Regeneration Teams to progress this priority.
Developments such as Meridian Water provide opportunities for local businesses and
organisations. The Associate Cabinet Member will promote opportunities to work with
local, young BAME business in Council development projects and achieve social value.

Priority Three
Delivering equality for the borough
Actions




To champion equality, diversity and inclusion in Enfield.
To work with a wide range of grassroots and local community organisations, charities and
key stakeholders in drafting a Fairer Enfield Policy (Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy)
Support the implementation and monitoring of the Enfield Poverty and Inequality
Commission Action Plans, though the Equalities Board

Page 15

Agenda Item 6

London Borough of Enfield

Cabinet
Meeting Date: 21 April 2021

Subject:
Quarter 3 Performance Report
Cabinet Member: Cllr. Ian Barnes
Executive Director: Fay Hammond, Executive Director Resources
Key Decision:

Non-Key

Purpose of Report
1. This is the quarterly report on the Corporate Performance Scorecard that
reflects the Council priorities as outlined in the new Council Business Plan.
The report attached at Appendix 1 shows the Quarter three performance for
2020/21 (Oct-December 2020) and compares it to the Council’s performance
across the previous four quarters for a series of Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs).
2. Appendix 2 focuses on a selection of priority measures where performance is
currently off target and/or direction of travel is negative. For each measure an
Action Plan has been provided to demonstrate what is being done in each
service area to address underperformance.

Proposal(s)
3. Cabinet is asked to note, for information only, the progress being made
towards delivering the key priority indicators for Enfield.
Reason for Proposal(s)
4. The report is part of the Quarterly timetable for Cabinet to review
performance.
Relevance to the Council Plan
5. The performance measures are grouped under the Council’s Corporate Plan
themes and our guiding principles. These are being updated to reflect the
new corporate plan for future reports
Background
6. Information is provided in line with the new Corporate Plan and priorities.

Page 16

7. In the continuing challenging local government financial environment, it is
important that the Council continues to monitor its performance to ensure that
the level and quality of service and value for money is maintained and where
possible improved. It is also essential to understand and take appropriate
action in areas where performance is deteriorating. This may include
delivering alternative interventions to address underperformance or making a
case to central government and other public bodies if the situation is beyond
the control of the Council
8. The purpose of the Corporate Performance Scorecard is that it has been
developed to demonstrate progress towards achieving the Council’s aims and
key priorities as set out in the Council Business Plan. The report is a
management tool that supports Council directorates and the Executive
Management Team (EMT) in scrutinising, challenging and monitoring
progress towards achieving the Council’s aims.
9. Performance information is reported quarterly to the Departmental
Management Teams (DMT) within each directorate and then to the Executive
Management Team (EMT) and Cabinet. In addition, detailed management
and operational performance information is monitored more regularly
10. The Corporate Scorecard is reviewed annually with departments and EMT to
consider the KPIs that should feature in the scorecard for the coming year.
Targets are set based on considering the previous 3 years performance,
direction of travel, local demand and by considering available resources to
deliver services.
11. Targets allow us to monitor performance. We apply a standard methodology
which the vast majority of KPIs are then rated against. KPIs are rated at
quarterly intervals as Red, Amber or Green (RAG). We have included a key
on the Scorecard to explain these definitions, these are as follows:
a. Red: The KPI is behind/below target and is varying by over 10% from
its target.
b. Amber: The KPI is narrowly missing target and/or there is information
that performance will be on track in future quarters;
c. Green: The KPI is meeting/exceeding its target.
12. Under Performing KPI Action Plans: Appendix 2 focuses on a selection of
priority KPIs that are underperforming. These priority KPIs are selected
following discussion at EMT where KPIs that have been behind target for a
sustained period are selected. This selection is then discussed and reviewed
with the Deputy Leader of the Council. Individual meetings are then held with
the owners of these KPIs and the owners are asked to draw up action plans
to provide context and detail how performance will be improved. Areas will
continue to be subject to these Action Plans until an upturn in performance is
realised and that they have been rated Green for 2 quarters.
13. The KPIS subject to additional challenge where an Action Plan has been
developed are as follows

Page 17
o
o
o
o
o

Waste and Recycling
Temporary Accommodation
Telephony and Customer Services
Sickness Absence
Complaints, Freedom of Information Requests and Members
Enquiries

Main Considerations for the Council
14. There are several key trends to note within the outputs and comments within

the Quarterly performance report but it should be noted that the Covid 19
pandemic has impacted on a number of the measures.

Safeguarding Implications
15. A safeguarding section relating to the Councils progress towards achieving its
key performance indicators is set out in this report
Public Health Implications
16. The scorecard includes several health and wellbeing KPIs that aim to
address the key health inequalities in Enfield.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal
17. Local authorities have a responsibility to meet the Public Sector Duty of the
Equality Act 2010. The Act gives people the right not to be treated less
favourably because of any of the protected characteristics. We need to
consider the needs of these diverse groups when designing and changing
services or budgets so that our decisions do not unduly or disproportionately
affect access by some groups more than others.
18. Corporate advice has been sought regarding equalities and an agreement
has been reached that an equalities impact assessment/analysis is not
relevant or proportionate for the corporate performance report.
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations
19. An Environmental and Climate Change Section relating to the Councils
progress towards achieving its key performance indicators is set out in this
report. The Climate Change indictors are being developed and will be
reported in Quarter 4.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken
20. This is for Cabinet to review progress in terms of Enfield achieving its
corporate performance indicators

Page 18

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will
be taken to manage these risks
21. This is for Cabinet to review progress in terms of Enfield achieving its
corporate performance indicators
Financial Implications
22. The cost of producing the quarterly reports will be met from existing
resources.
23. A series of financial measures that have been reported at Cabinet are
included in this report.
Legal Implications
24. There is no statutory duty to report regularly to Cabinet on the Council’s
performance, however under the Local Government Act 1999 a best value
authority has a statutory duty to secure continuous improvement in the way in
which its functions are exercised having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness. Regular reports on the Council’s performance
assist in demonstrating best value.
Workforce Implications
25. The scorecard includes several KPIs that report on staff sickness within
Enfield
Property Implications
26. None
Other Implications
27. None
Options Considered
28. Not to report regularly on the Council’s performance in a public report. This
would make it difficult to assess progress made on achieving the Council’s
main priorities and to demonstrate the value for money being provided by
council services.

Report Author:

Sam Buckley
Head of Knowledge and Insights
Sam.buckley@enfield.gov.uk
0208 132 1357

Date of report: 8th March 2021

Page 19

Appendices
Appendix 1: Corporate Scorecard
Appendix 2: Action Plans on under achieving KPIS

Background Papers
None

This page is intentionally left blank

Cabinet report: Financial Year Q3 2020-21 Performance Report:
This relates to the period October- December 2020

Borough Information: A series of data items to add context to the report rather than to be viewed as performance indicators

Indicator

Current Data

Up or Down on
Last Period

Last Update

333,794

Q4 2020/21

Enfield Population 18-64

204,921

March 2021

Enfield Population 65+

44,564

March 2021

Employment rate in Enfield - working age Population

71.2%

2020/21

Proportion of adult population Qualified to at least NVQ Level 3 or higher

125,600

2019/20

Proportion of adult population Qualified to at least NVQ Level 4 or higher

87,600

2019/20

Workless Households - rounded to nearest 100 (h/h with at least 1 person aged 16 to 64) (ONS annual pop survey)

17,100

2019/20

Workless Households - % of all Households in Enfield

17.1%

2019/20

Gross Weekly Pay - Median earnings for employees living in Enfield (ONS annual survey of hours and earnings - resident analysis)

£653.50

2019/20

Total Claimant Count for Enfield (receiving Job Seekers Allowance/Universal Credit as a result of unemployment)

19,495

Q4 2020/21

9.1%

Q4 2020/21

Claimant Count (as above) as % of Working Age Population (Enfield)
Enfield Deprivation Ranking (In List of 317 Local Authorities in England)

74

2019/20

Number of Enfield's Neighbourhoods in the top 10% of the most Deprived in England (of 32,844 small Neighbourhood Areas in England in 2015)

10

2019/20

LBE Administered Benefits: Combined Benefits Caseload (Housing Benefit (HB) and Council Tax Support (CTS)

40,494

December 2020

Council Tax Support (CTS) Caseload (whether receiving HB or not)

37,076

December 2020

Housing Benefits (HB) Caseload (whether receiving CTS or not)

23,606

December 2020

1

Page 21

Population of All Enfield

Indicator

Current Data

Up or Down on
Last Period

Last Update

NHS Indicator - A&E Attendance: % where less than 4 hours from arrival to admission, transfer or discharge

83.8%

Q3 2020/21

Universal Credit - Claimants in Receipt of Council Tax Support

12,742

December 2020

Page 22

Priority 1: Good Homes in Well Connected Neighbourhoods

Build more and better homes for residents

Indicator
NI156i Number of households living in
temporary accommodation

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

Target

3446

3474

3553

3557

3515

HD 08 Number of new dwellings started
on Council Led Schemes

75

59

0

192

0

Data Only KPI

HD 10 Number of new dwellings
completed (net additional)

49

0

0

0

106

Data Only KPI

2

3210

3210

The COVID pandemic led to a rapid redesign of the service offer. Further
information can be in the attached Action Plan

Housing development – 61 and Estate Renewal 45

Invest in and improve our council homes

Indicator

HO008 The percentage of council owned
homes which have a current gas safety
certificate

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21
Figure shows the combined compliance of Gas Safety Checks on both
Council Stock and Gateway Properties.

98.3%

99%

97%

97.9%

98.5%

100%

100%

Total Council Stock = 8,930 (properties) with 133 non compliances (98.5%).
This includes Gateway Properties = 279 (properties) with 4 non compliances
(98.57%).

Deliver housebuilding and regeneration programmes with our residents

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

REGEN002b Affordable housing units as
a percentage of gross units completed

30%

Annually reported KPI

Target

Annually reported KPI

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

40%

Note: Units are only counted as ‘complete’ when the whole development is
completed.

Annually
reported KPI

REGEN007 Social Rented housing units
as a percentage of gross affordable units
completed

2019/20 – 30% (139 affordable homes out of 465 gross home completions)
2018/19 17% (103/603).
Breakdown: Ladders wood Estate (23); Ponders End High Street (21); Jasper
Close (18); Drapers Road (11), Ordnance Road (15), Linwood Crescent (8),
Cockfosters Road (3), Fraser Road/Clydesdale (2 each)
2017/18 6.5% (37/568).

70%

Annually reported KPI

Annually reported KPI

70%

2019/20: 70% (97/139) completed affordable homes were for social rent.
2018/19 - 22% (23/103 homes) were for social rent. Affordable Rent
represented 64% and Intermediate tenure represented 14% of all completed
affordable homes.
2017/18: 91.9% (34/37) were for social rent
Note: Units are only counted as ‘complete’ when the whole development is
completed.

NI157a BV109a % MAJOR applications
determined within target

100%

100%

100%

100%

88.9%

90%

90%

October: 5/5; November: 1/2; December: 2/2: Q3: 8/9 (88.9%):
2020/21 total: 23/24 (95.8%)

NI157b BV109b % MINOR applications
determined within target

93.9%

87.8%

97.8%

91%

94.7%

86%

86%

October: 54/60; November: 56/58; December: 50/51; Q3: 160/169 (94.7%).
2020/21 Total: 428/453 (94.5%).

NI157c BV109c % OTHER applications
determined within target

91.9%

87.4%

97%

96.2%

97.1%

88%

88%

October: 91/96; November: 115/116; December: 94/97; Q3: 300/309
(97.1%).
2020/21 Total: 862/891 (96.7%).

3

Page 23

Indicator

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

Target

ENV247 % 2 year rolling MAJOR
applications determined within target

79.3%

81.7%

80%

84.2%

87.3%

86%

86%

Q3: 55 of the 63 (87.3%) major planning applications determined within the
last 24 months were processed within 13 weeks.

ENV247a % 2 year rolling MINOR
applications determined within target

73.4%

75%

78.3%

81.2%

83.2%

85%

85%

Q3: 1,067 of the 1,283 (83.2%) minor applications determined within the last
24 months were processed within 8 weeks.

ENV247b % 2 year rolling MINOR &
OTHER applications determined within
target

78.6%

79.2%

81.4%

84.3%

86%

85%

85%

Q3: 2,430 of the 2,824 (86%) minor and other applications determined within
the last 24 months were processed within 8 weeks.

350

346

376

370

371

ENV319 Undetermined applications
validated over 6 months ago

Data Only KPI

Value reflects the position on the last day of the quarter. Includes all
applications validated on or after 01/04/2015 to date where no decision is
recorded.

Priority 2: Safe, Healthy and Confident Communities

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

32

35

48

39

Indicator

SGB501 Number of knife possession
offences YTD

CS-SSCB009 Burglary - Residential
Offences

CS-SSCB010 Domestic Abuse Incidents

Notes

37

There was a 15.6% increase in Knife Possession offences when comparing Q3 to the same quarter in
2019/20. In Enfield there was a 15.3% reduction in Knife Possession offences compared to the previous year.
London saw an 11.5% reduction.
There was a 31.2% decrease in Residential Burglary when comparing Q3 to the same quarter in 2019/20.
After the steady increase in offences from April through to October, dropping slightly in September, offences
have begun to decrease through to December though remaining lower than the same months last year.
Overall there were 1,974 Residential Burglaries in Enfield in the year ending December 2020, compared with
2,750 in the previous year, a decrease of 28.2%. In London, there was also a decrease of 21.8% in the same
period.

797

743

261

420

547

1,446

1,420

1,741

1,783

1,605

Q3 2020/21: 1,605 Domestic Abuse incidents, up 11% when compared to Q3 last year

CS-SSCB011 Domestic Abuse Violence
with Injury (DA VWI) Offences

242

211

276

268

239

There was a 1.2% decrease in DA VWI offences when comparing Q3 to the same quarter in 2019/20. From
September to November the number of offences has been increasing and moving closer to matching the
number of offences from the previous year. The number of offences in November and December have closely
matched those months in 2019. In Enfield there was a 1.7% increase in DA VWI offences from the previous
year, London saw a slightly smaller increase of 0.4%.

CS-SSCB012 Serious Youth Violence
(SYV)

153

103

50

76

91

There was a 33.3% decrease in SYV offences when comparing Q3 to the same quarter in 2019/20. October
saw a slightly lower rate of offences compared to 2019 with November and December notably lower than the
previous year. In Enfield there was a 33.7% decrease in SYV offences from the previous year, London saw a
25.8% decrease.

4

Page 24

Keep Communities Free from Crime (Arrows indicate whether an increase or decrease compared to the previous quarter)

Indicator

CS-SSCB013 Anti-Social Behaviour Calls

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

2,283

2,291

6,896

4,059

3,724

CS-SSCB014 Hate Crime Overall Total

132

CS-SSCB015 Non-Domestic Abuse
Violence with Injury Offences

421

CS-SSCB016 Violence against the
Person (VAP) Offences

1,959

230

There was a 63.2% increase in ASB calls when comparing Q3 to the same quarter in 2019/20. The number of
ASB calls was significantly higher than in the previous year throughout Q3. In Enfield there was an 81.1%
increase in ASB calls from the previous year, London saw a 74.8% increase.

236

171

376

464

416

There was a 1.2% decrease in Non-DA VWI offences when comparing Q3 to the same quarter in 2019/20.
from October to December the number of offences saw a month on month decrease similar, though less
pronounced than in the previous year. In Enfield there was 6.1% decrease in Non-DA VWI offences from the
previous year, London saw a 15.8% decrease.

1,871

2,128

2,349

2,192

There was an 11.9% increase in VAP offences when comparing Q3 to the same quarter in 2019/20. October
and December both had a higher level of offences than in the previous year. November saw offences drop to
slightly below the number of offences compared to the previous year. In Enfield there was a 6.8% increase in
VAP offences from the previous year. London saw a 0.8% reduction.

156

91

134

137

There was an 40.4% decrease in Knife Crime offences when comparing Q3 to the same quarter in 2019/20. In
Enfield there was a 32.7% reduction in Knife Crime offences from the previous year. London saw a 25.7%
reduction.

134

Inspire and Empower Young Enfield to reach their Full Potential

Education

Indicator
YOS 045 Young offenders’ engagement
in suitable education, training and
employment (Post Court) (At the end of
the Order)
ED 003 % All Secondary Schools judged
as good or outstanding by Ofsted (as at
31August)

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

62.5%

91.0%

50.0%

91.0%

68.2%

66.7%

76.0%

Q4 is latest

Q4 is latest

Q4 is latest

data

data

data

Target

75.0%

88%

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

75.0%

88%

Q3 2020/21 actual numbers 19 out of 25 young offenders in Education,
training or employment (ETE); 20/32 (62.5%) for same period in 2019
As at 31 March 2020, 91% of Enfield State funded Secondary Schools including Academies judged as Outstanding (29%) and Good (62%); above
London average of 88% and England 76%
(90% in each of the previous 4 years up to 2018/19)

ED 004 % All Primary Schools judged as
good or outstanding by Ofsted (as at
31August)

84.0%

84.0%

Q4 is latest

Q4 is latest

Q4 is latest

data

data

data

5

As at 31 March 2020, 84% Enfield State funded Primary Schools - including
Academies judged as Outstanding (15%) and Good (69%); below London
average of 94% and England 88%
88%

88%
2018/19: 84%
2017/18: 85%
2016/17: 94%

Page 25

199

There was a 30.3% increase in Hate Crime offences when comparing Q3 to the same quarter in 2019/20. In
October and November, the level of offences was like those months in the previous year. However, the
number of offences was notably higher in December 2020 when compared to the same month in 2019. In
Enfield there was a 44.1% increase in Hate Crime offences from the previous year, London saw a 12.5%
increase.

415

SGB500 Number of knife crime offences
YTD

Notes

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

PA087P Percentage of Persistent
Absence in State Funded Primary school.
(10% Threshold)

10.81%

PA087S Percentage of Persistent
Absence in State Funded secondary
schools (10% Threshold)

14.21%

Target

Q3 is latest

Q3 is latest

Q3 is latest

Q3 is latest

Q3 is latest

data

data

data

data

data

Q3 is latest

Q3 is latest

Q3 is latest

Q3 is latest

Q3 is latest

data

data

data

data

data

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21
Data Only
Measure

Published data for Autumn term 2019/20. Q3 is the latest data due to Covid
19

Data Only
Measure

Published data for Autumn term 2019/20. Q3 is the latest data due to Covid
19
5.6% Represents the total 1.2% NEET (111) and 4.4% (394), out of the 8,922
16-17-year-old cohort.

SCS117 % of 16-17-year olds not in
education, employment or training
(NEET) AND Not Known (NK)

13.5%

3.5%

73.0%

3%

66.4%

61.1%

NEET - 35 Female, 76 Male

5.6%

7%

7%

79 (71.2%) Seeking employment or training, 5 (4.5%) Teenage parents, 5
(4.5%) Not yet ready for work or learning; the remaining cohort is made up of
low numbers for 7 other reasons.
Snapshot by ward: Ponders End: 12, Halsbury: 11, Southbury: 8, Lower
Edmonton: 8
NEET: England average = 2.7%, London = 1.8%, SN = 2.6%
NK: England average = 3.6%, London = 3%, SN = 3.2%

41.8%

64.0%

64.0%

Q3 2020/21: 23 completed within 20 weeks out of 55 total EHCP’s issued
within the quarter. Due to clearing of historical cases that are out of time and
significant staff sickness we have seen a slight drop in Q3. The SEN2
(Statutory return) measure for the year remains on track at 62% and we are
continuing to clear the backlog which will have an ongoing impact on
performance

Deliver essential services to protect and support vulnerable residents
Adults

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Indicator
Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

PAF-AO/D40s Number of clients
reviewed in the year (of clients receiving
any long-term service)

47.8%

55.1%

14.7%

28.3%

38.5%

52.5%

70.0%

Q3 2020/21: 38.5% represents 1,613 of 4,189 clients receiving long term
support having a review within the quarter. We are off target for several
reasons, including the pandemic. Action plans have been put in place to
improve numbers further and these are monitored at a monthly performance
board.

NI130s(%LTSs) Percentage of Current
Social Care Clients accessing Long Term
Support (LTS) who receive Self Directed
Support

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

99.5%

99.5%

2,903 Current clients with LTS receiving Self Directed Support

NI130s(LTS-DP%) Percentage of current
clients with Long Term Support (LTS)
receiving a Direct Payment

62.6%

59.5%

57.6%

56.5%

55.8%

58.0%

58.0%

1,619/2,903 Clients receiving Direct Payments. We were the best performing
local authority nationally when looking at 2019-20 performance for direct
payments.

6

Page 26

SGB134 Number of Education Health
Care Plans (EHCP’s) completed within 20
Weeks (Excluding exceptions)

5.2%

Quarter 2
data is not
published due
to education
destinations
being reset in
this period

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

Target

NI131 (F10) Delayed transfers of care
(days): Profile within Each Quarter

1503

848

National Collection and Local
Reporting Suspended

National Collection and Local Reporting
Suspended

This represents data until February 2020, which is the latest available. Due to
Covid-19, data collection for this measure has been suspended nationally.
848 for Quarter 4 represents the delays (and associated target) for January
and February only.

NI131 (F11) Delayed Transfer of Care Days Delayed (SOCIAL CARE Delays):
Profile within Each Quarter

657

396

National Collection and Local
Reporting Suspended

National Collection and Local Reporting
Suspended

This represents data until February 2020, which is the latest available. Due to
Covid-19, data collection for this measure has been suspended nationally.
396 for Quarter 4 represents the delays (and associated target) for January
and February only.

NI135 Carers receiving needs
assessment or review and a specific
carer’s service, or advice and information
(Including Carers Centre)

36.41%

42.32%

19.21%

33.51%

45.47%

36.00%

48.00%

This figure represents the highest recorded Quarter 3 figure for this measure
and is an increase on the same period last year (36.4%).

NI145 Adults with learning disabilities in
settled accommodation

85.3%

83.6%

85.3%

84.7%

84.5%

81.0%

81.0%

Q3 2020/21: 612 adults with learning disabilities of 819 (84.5%) known to
Adult Social Care in settled accommodation. The 2019-20 data placed Enfield
33rd (out of 151) nationally for this indicator

381.5

461.5

53.9

89.8

134.6

360.0

479.8

Cohort 1 will now be assessed to see who retains responsibility (Council or
NHS) and cohort 2 will follow the same route to ascertain responsibility.
The current expectation is that numbers will increase markedly over the next
3 months as this is undertaken but should remain within the target level.

PAF-AO/C73 New Admissions to
Residential and Nursing Care 18-64 (per
100,000 population).

4.87

5.85

2.93

3.42

3.42

4.39

5.85

2020/21: 7 Admissions of 204,921 population aged 18-64.

Children's Safeguarding

Indicator

LAC18 (PAFCH39) Children looked after
(CLA) per 10000 population age under 18

NI060A Percentage of Children & Family
Assessments for children's social care
that were authorised within 45 working
days of their commencement

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

46.4

90.8%

46.7

87.4%

46

92.3%

44.7

91.8%

44.2

91.2%

7

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

Target

50

80.0%

50

44.2 LAC per 10,000
373 CLA as at the end of December, lowest since Feb 2019 (369)
44 cases with a disability (11.8%)
12-month average figure of looked after children is 385/month; 390 for same
period in 2019

80.0%

2,907 out of 3,189 completed assessments have been authorised within 45
working days of the assessment start date. The average duration for those
authorised was 27.6 days. 84.1% assessments completed by the Social
Worker within 35 working days, average duration for completion of 25 days.

Page 27

PAF-AO/C72 New Admissions to
supported permanent Residential and
Nursing Care (65+) per 100,000
population over 65

The overall rate remains low due to all post hospital discharges to care
homes, prior to 01/09/20 (Cohort 1), being the responsibility of the NHS. Post
01/09 (cohort 2), the first 6 weeks is the responsibility of the NHS.

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

Target

Team performance figures:
Cheviots 86.7%; Child in Need Team 75%, CP&FST 83%; CSET 87.5%;
Domestic Abuse Team 92.2%, FAST 90.2%; Homeless & Immigration 100%;
Looked After Children Team 85.7%; LCT 69.2%; Referral & Assessment
93.8%
SG11 (CS20) No of children on the Child
Protection Plan (CPP) per 10,000
Children
NI065 Percentage of children becoming
the subject of Child Protection Plan for a
second or subsequent time - in the past
two years

28.3

24

10.9%

12.2%

26.3

9.8%

31.2

8.9%

31.1

8.5%

45

45

Data Only Measure

Rate of children per 10,000 with a CPP: 31.1
262 total CPP, 29 new CPP and 29 cessations. 22 (8.2%) young people with
a disability
This indicator relates to children who have had a previous Child Protection
Plan in the past two years.
Of the 297 children who became subject to a CPP during the past 12 months,
25 had previously been on a CP Plan in the past two years; 44 (14.8%)
children have had a previous CPP at some point in the past.

Create healthy streets, parks and community spaces

Environment

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

NI195a % of inspected land that has an
unacceptable level of litter

This is a new KPI

0.5%

Target
3.0%

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21
3.0%

Data for Quarter 3 represents survey between 7th and 14th December 2020.
0.5% equates to 1.5 unacceptable levels of litter

Public Health

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

DAAT-001 NDTMS Partnership
Successful Completion Rate (%) for all
Drug users in treatment (aged 18+),
excluding alcohol-only users:

20.3%

21.8%

21.3%

21.2%

Q2 is latest data
available

20%

20%

PH002c New Baby Reviews completed
(10-14 days after birth)

96.6%

99%

98%

99%

Q2 is latest data
available

92%

92%

Q3 data was not yet available.

Q3 data was not yet available.

8

Contacts continued following changes in service delivery in response to
Covid.

Page 28

Q3 2019/20
Indicator

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21
Q3 2020/21 data not yet available

PH002o Substance Misuse: Proportion of
Young People exiting treatment in a
planned way of all treatment exits (EMT)

81%

81%

87%

PH003i % completed treatment within a
month of diagnosis at Enfield Sexual
Health Clinics

92%

97%

98%

PH003x Number of Children that received
at least one Fluoride Varnish

3,248

4,487

Due to Covid
19 this was not
completed

90%

No Quarter 3
Data available

78%

78%

98%

98%

90%

90%

The Service Health Service is meeting its target for this indicator despite the
impact of the pandemic on service delivery. The Service is ensuring that as a
priority, residents diagnosed with an STI have access to treatment options
across clinic sites within Enfield.

3258

As a direct result of the national lockdown in March 2020 and the continued
Covid measures currently in place, in the first 2 quarters the OHP Team was
unable to resume to their normal activity visiting schools and starting the
intake for fluoride varnish applications. However, with the beginning of Q3 the
Team followed an individually tailored approach for each school which
enabled them to provide FV applications across 8 schools (completed) and
some year groups (some were in self-isolation) in some of the remaining
schools. The figure of 1,419 includes 391 Y2 pupils who received a one-off
FV application as they missed out on their second application last year due to
the first national lockdown in March.

Due to Covid
19 this was
not
completed

1,419

2,444

From April until the end of September 2020 90% of all young people exited
treatment did so in a planned way which is above the National Average of
78% for the same period.

Page 29

Priority 3: An Economy that Works for Everyone
Create more high-quality employment

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Indicator
ENV 210 Business Start-Ups in Enfield

NI146 % of Adults with learning
disabilities in employment

908

18.6%

880

16.1%

1,000

15.2%

1,473

15%

1,346

14.3%

9

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

Data Only Measure

16%

16%

Number of start-ups across all sectors
Q3 2020/21: 117 adults with learning disabilities of 819 (14.3%) known to
ASC in employment. This indicator has been affected by the changes in
employment levels related to the pandemic. The 2019-20 data placed Enfield
6th (out of 151) nationally for this indicator.

Enhance skills to connect local people to opportunities

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Indicator

HR0001p Apprentices Headcount

28

34

34

31

Target
30

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

Data Only Measure

This is the number of apprentices employed by Enfield Council

Develop town centres that are diverse, safe and inclusive

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Indicator

LC05 Leisure Centre - overall
attendances

429,593

361,414

0

28,118

48,417

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

Figure recorded is the total for the quarter. The leisure centres opened in
Target to be set. Covid 19 has
October then closed on 04.11.20 for the second lockdown. They reopened
impacted awaiting further details
once more on 02.12.20 but have been closed now since the third lockdown
of opening to set suitable target
which occurred on the 19.12.20.

Page 30

Craft a cultural offer for Enfield to support London’s status as a world class city

Indicator

ENV317 Participation in Council Led Arts
Activities

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

74,850

51,050

14,474

45,020

43,115

Target

60,000

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21
The Venues started opening during this period with Black History Month
events at Millfield, Tours at Forty Hall and Pantomime and Christmas shows
planned for the Theatres. The Dance schools and community events
commenced across all venues. The 2nd lock down in November 2020 bough
much of that to a halt with a brief re-opening in Early December but with the
Tier 3 status of London in Mid-December followed by the 3rd lockdown all
events came to halt. During this period following the closure of the
Community Hum Millfield Theatre became the centre for emergency food and
pharmacy deliveries to vulnerable residents and formed part of the Track and
trace effort by delivering letters to members of the public needing to selfisolate.
Preparations during this period for Dugdale Centre to become a mass
vaccination Centre and Green Towers became a TEST centre for Covid-19 at
the end of this period with staff from the Culture Team managing parts of this
effort.
Total - 43,115
Millfield Theatre - 13,591
Forty Hall - 25,431

10

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21
Dugdale Centre - 2179
Green Towers - 1130
Salisbury House - 774
Festivals and Events - 10

CE 061 Museum and Archives

New KPI: Under Construction and Data Pending

Target to be set. Covid 19 has impacted awaiting further details of opening to set suitable target

Cross Cutting Theme 1: A Modern Council
An empowered, responsive and happy workforce

Average Sickness Days

Indicator

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

BV012a Average Sick Days - Council
Staff (rolling 4 quarters)

8.99

8.99

9.27

9.47

9.75

7.96

7.96

Annual sickness 1st January 2020 - 31st December 2020
Average sickness days per employee in each Department for this period
Chief Executives: 6.0 days. (previous 6.5 days)
Resources: 6.3 days (previous 6.3)
People: 7.6 days (previous 6.9)
Place: 14.1 days (previous 13.9)
Absence includes sickness relating to or due to Covid-19

BV012b Average Sick Days: SHORT
TERM ABSENCE - Council Staff (rolling
4 quarters)

3.28

3.39

3.32

3.23

3.18

2.80

2.80

Short term Absence has seen a small decrease across the last 2 quarters

BV012c Average Sick Days: LONG
TERM ABSENCE - Council Staff (rolling
4 quarters)

5.71

5.60

5.95

6.24

6.56

5.16

5.16

Long term Absence has increased

HR0008a Average Sick Days per FTE
per Month - Chief Executive's

1.67

1.56

1.59

1.68

1.17

1.99

7.96

Sickness Absence remains below target

HR0008bb Average Sick Days per FTE
per Month – Resources

1.84

1.81

1.33

1.35

1.79

1.99

7.96

Sickness Absence remains below target

HR0008cc Average Sick Days per FTE
per Month – People

1.53

2.03

1.55

1.82

2.22

1.99

7.96

Sickness has seen a small increase in the last quarter. Further information
can be located within the associated action plan

HR0008dd Average Sick Days per FTE
per Month – Place

3.18

3.39

3.82

3.51

3.42

1.99

7.96

Sickness rates have improved in the last quarter. A series of actions are in
existence within the department and further information can be found in the
associated action plan.

11

Page 31

Q3 2019/20

Profile of Sickness Absence

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Indicator
HR 0030 Long Term - Still Absent”:
Number of employees who have a
sickness absence of 28 days or more and
is still absent
HR 0031 “3+ Occasions in 3 Months”:
Number of employees who have had 3 or
more periods of sickness absence in the
last 3 months (regardless of duration)
HR 0032 “5+ Working Days in 6 Months”:
Number of employees who have
accumulated 6 or more working days of
short-term sickness absence (duration
less than 28 calendar days) in the last 6
months

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

New KPI not collected in this
period

59

59

71

Data only Measure

Based on data as at 31.12.2020 and includes individuals that have reached a
sickness absence trigger point in the 6 months prior to that date:
Breakdown: CEX - 2; People - 22; Place - 34; Resources - 13

New KPI not collected in this
period

86

76

63

Data only Measure

Based on data as at 31.12.2020 and includes individuals that have reached a
sickness absence trigger point in the 6 months prior to that date:
Breakdown: CEX - 5; People - 22; Place - 26; Resources - 10

New KPI not collected in this
period

343

344

400

Data only Measure

Based on data as at 31.12.2020 and includes individuals that have reached a
sickness absence trigger point in the 6 months prior to that date:
Breakdown: CEX - 20; People - 124; Place - 184; Resources - 72

Page 32

Profile of Workforce

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Indicator
Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

Of the Top 5% of Earners the percentage
that are Women

New KPI not collected in this period

49.71%

50.8%

Data only Measure

93 of 183 (50.8%)

Of the Top 5% of Earners the percentage
that are from Ethnic Minorities

New KPI not collected in this period

18.29%

19.1%

Data only Measure

35 of 183 (19.1%)

Of the Top 5% of Earners the percentage
that have a disability

New KPI not collected in this period

5.71%

5.5%

Data only Measure

10 of 183 (5.5%)

34%

34.3%

Data only Measure

34.3% of the workforce in Enfield are from Black and Minority ethnic groups

The % of Black and Minority Ethnic Staff
in LBE Workforce

New KPI not collected in this
period

33.4%

Accessible and efficient services

Library, Digital and Web

12

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

CE 005 Enfield Website: Total Users for
the Month

433,100

271,131

114,739

196,957

277,833

GWH 007a "Enfield Connected" - Sign
Ups: Residential (Overall Cumulative
Total)

148,367

155,006

161,665

167,692

172,425

LM04 Enfield Library Visits

345,840

312,474

Libraries
Closed

53,715

49,913

2nd Lockdown: 05.11. - 02.12.2020; F2F Services stay open.
Target to be set. Covid 19 has
Tier 4 London 19.12.2020 - 04.01.2020 F2F Services stay open.
impacted awaiting further details
3rd Lockdown: 05.01.2021 - current. Flagship Libraries/ F2F Community Hub
of opening to set suitable target
stay open for access to IT (PC's), essential enquiries and Click & Collect

LM07 Issues plus renewals - All Libraries

196,571

193,527

20,097

25,126

62,640

Target to be set. Covid 19 has The increase from Q2 to Q3 2020/21 is due to Sirsi Dynic changing the
impacted awaiting further details system in December 2020 to all items set to auto renewal.
of opening to set suitable target The reduction from Q4 19/20 to 20/21 is due to Covid 19

LM31.01 Digital - E-Newspapers Issues

New KPI

15,056

105,881

112,028

120,185

Data Only Measure

LM31.02 Digital - E-Book Issues

New KPI

2,026

9,018

9,004

8,112

Data Only Measure

LM31.03 Digital - E-Audiobook Issues

New KPI

1,601

6,180

5,808

5,624

Data Only Measure

LM31.04 Digital - E-Comics and
Magazines

New KPI

2,131

7,424

7,584

7,268

Data Only Measure

250,000

1,000,000

Data only Measure

This is a Cumulative total at the end of each quarter

Cumulative total at the end of each quarter

New measure on residents accessing Electronic newspapers online. This has
supplemented the regular offer and take-up has been very encouraging
New measure on residents accessing Books online
New measure on residents accessing Audiobooks online
New measure on residents accessing Magazines online

Page 33

Telephones

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Indicator
Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21
Continued improvement compared to previous quarter. Since Q1 we’ve
revamped the web chat survey as well improved our agents’ training.

CE 007 Customer Satisfaction: Webchat

72.3%

70.7%

77.3%

84.4%

86.8%

85.0%

85.0%

CE 009a Customer Satisfaction:
Telephone Advisor ‘Professional’ Rating

83.2%

82.3%

82.7%

82.1%

84.3%

85%

85%

Ratings ae continually reviewed to improve training and learning and
development

GWH 002 Gateway Telephones - Answer
Rate

77.9%

91.3%

97.5%

94.3%

89.7%

88%

88%

Above the 88% target

GWH 003 Gateway Telephones Average Wait Time

GWH 014b Customer Services: % of
Calls Answered Within 5 Minutes

00h 06m 41s

00h 02m 59s

00h 00m 34s

00h 01m 56s

00h 03m 42s

00h 03m 00s

00h 03m 00s

69.17%

98.13%

99.53%

96.3%

94.77%

90%

90%

13

Average waiting times typically correlate with the average handling times
(AHT) per workstream or transaction time. Council Housing AHT is roughly 12
minutes when compared with Homelessness and General Enquiries which
have 7 and five-minute AHT respectively. Whenever calls exceed the AHT
because of complexity or other issues, the waiting times will be impacted.
Recently, since the last quarter of 202/21, frontline officers have reported that
AHT especially for Council Housing is getting longer as residents are
beginning to share their Covid-19 related challenges during calls meant for
reporting their repair issues.
Answer Rate continues to be very positive

Financial Resilience and Good Governance

Complaints, MEQS, FOIs, SARS

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

Target

COMP 01a Initial Review Complaints Council Overall (% inside target)

83%

82%

78%

83%

80%

95%

95%

Q3: 373 of 465 Initial Review Complaints inside target: 80.2%. Further
information can be found within the associated action plan in Appendix 2

FOI 01a All Departments - FOIs
answered within 20 days

94%

83%

79%

86%

87%

100%

100%

Q3 2020/21: 360 of 412 (87.4%) within timescale for all departments. Further
information can be found within the associated action plan in Appendix 2

MEQ 01a All Departments - MEQs closed
within 8 days

87%

77%

78%

84%

89%

95%

95%

Q3 2020/21: 1,769 of 1,998 inside target (88.5%)
YTD: 4,160 / 4,952 (84%). Further information can be found within the
associated action plan in Appendix 2

77.4%

75.9%

89.5%

100%

100%

Q3: 34/38 (89.5%) inside target
Year to Date: 80/98 (81.6%)

SAR 001 SAR Requests ALL
DEPARTMENTS - Enquiries closed
inside target of 40 days

New KPI reported in Q1

Page 34

Income & Arrears

Indicator
HO002b Council Housing - Current
Tenants: Total Arrears

BV009 % of Council Tax collected (in
year collection) Combined

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

£2,310,884

£2,230,031

£2,054,903

£2,002,503

£2,300,000

£2,300,000

December 2020: Current tenant arrears: £2,002,503.
December 2019: Arrears £2,310,884.
Due to the award of £5.9m in CTSH additional reliefs from Central
government, overall CT collection has not fallen too far behind its 2019/20
level.

81.40%

95.50%

28.47%

54.61%

81.28%

81.40%

95.00%
End of December collection rate 81.28% - (130,942,803 collected /
161,108,860 net debit). Current target of 81.40% represents actual collection
rate at December 2019.
End of December collection rate 73.35% - (56,092,874 collected / 76,471,131
Annual Target net debit). The London Revenues Group collection survey estimated in
to be
October an average loss at year end as 11.7% compared to the 19/20 target.
confirmed
Although the collection rate improved in Q3, Q4 will be impacted by the
introduction of further Lockdown business grants.

98.6%

21.26% (no
target set at
this time)

41.82% (no
target set at
this time)

73.35%

73.3%

75.11%

77.52%

92.61%

92.34%

97.26%

83.00%

83.00%

21.76

23.21

18.98

20.79

22.46

23

23

BV010 % of Business Rates collected (in
year collection)

82.18%

BV079b(i) % of Housing Benefit
Overpayments recovered.
FCRCP32 Processing New claims Housing Benefit (average calendar days cumulative)

£2,104,342

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

Target

14

2020/21: £5,387,056 recovered of £5,539,050 overpayments identified
(97.26%).
April 2020 to Date: 1,737 new claims / 39,007 days - Average 22.46.

Indicator
FCRCP33 Processing Times for Benefit
Change in Circumstances (average
number of calendar days) Cumulative
YTD

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

4.29

3.85

3.62

3.69

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

Target

4.66

7

7

Exceeding target.

Invoices

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

97.4%

97.5%

98.4%

97.6%

97.9%

97-100.0%

100.0%

Year to date (YTD)
97.9% - 52,120 invoices paid inside 30 days from 53,218 paid.

INV004 CEX Group: Invoices Paid within
30 days

97.9%

98.1%

96.4%

97.3%

98.1%

97-100.0%

100.0%

YTD 97.4% - 1,086 invoices paid inside 30 days from 1,115 paid.

INV004 PEOP People Group: Invoices
Paid within 30 days

97.2%

97.5%

98.5%

97.5%

97.9%

97-100.0%

100.0%

YTD 98% - 35,595 invoices paid inside 30 days from 36,323 paid.

INV004 PLACE Group: Invoices Paid
within 30 days

97.3%

97.0%

98.1%

97.7%

97.7%

97-100.0%

100.0%

YTD: 97.8% - 12,119 / 12,386

INV004 RES Resources Group: Invoices
Paid within 30 days

98.3%

98.0%

98.3%

97.2%

97.9%

97-100.0%

100.0%

YTD: 97.8% -3,320 / 3,394

Traded Income

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

TRADLBE 01 All Departments - Gross
Income (Actual)

£19,391,232

£28,463,995

£4,566,565

£10,491,353

£16,237,591

£21,406,358

£25,687,635

The data shown in Q3 represents the position as at the end of January as no
report was produced at end of December due to changes that were required
to the SAP hierarchy. This has been impacted significantly by Covid 19 such
as the impact of traded services to schools/
Gross Income to end of January 2021:
CEX: £1,239,151
Place: £1,749,456
Resources: £4,287,949
People: £8,961,035

TRADLBE 02 All Departments - Net
Income (Actual)

£3,019,906

£4,336,491

£238,839

£874,598

£514,175

£3,855,449

£4,837,265

Net at January 2021: + £514,175
By Department:
CEX: + £290k,

15

Page 35

INV004 Invoices Council Overall:
Invoices Paid within 30 days

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21
Place: + £2.1m,
Resources: - £1.3 (minus),
People: - £0.5m (minus)

Working in Partnership

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

CE 068 Increased Partnership Working
with Community Groups / Local
Businesses / Voluntary Sector Through
the Development of a Partnership
Register
LM29 Library - Volunteer Hours

Target

New KPI in development

2,162

1,740

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

New KPI in development

0

0

0

New KPI in development

Data Only measure

No data collected due to Covid 19

Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

CA 000 Climate Action Indicators

Target

Information to follow in Q4

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21
At the moment this section only includes the established waste and recycling
indicators. Climate action is now a cross cutting theme in the Council Plan
and progress will be measured using the performance indicators set out in the
Council’s Climate Action Plan, which will be alongside an annual update on
the actions that need to be delivered.
Work has continued the development of the Key Performance Indicators
outlined in the Climate Action Plan, with the intention being that a baseline
and trajectory will be confirmed for each by the end of 2020.
A number of these indicators are based on data which is collected and
reported on an annual basis so performance will not change quarterly. For
these 2020/21 performance should be reported at the end of Q4.

Information to follow in Q4

NI191 Residual Waste Per Household
(kg)

485 kg per
h/h

631.6 kg per
h/h

143.6 kg per
h/h

No Q2 data
Available
Being
finalised

No Q3 Data available

NI192 % of household waste sent for
reuse, recycling and composting

30.8%

31%

34.6%

No Q2 data
Available
Being

No Q3 Data available

16

Q1 data is Provisional.
600 kg per h/h Q1 data shows approx. 20kg less being collected per household than the
same time last year (144kg in 2020/21 compared to 162kg in 2019/20).

37%

Q1 data is Provisional.
Q1 data shows 0.5.% less waste being recycled than this time last year
(34.6% in Q1 2020/21 compared to 35.1% in 2019/20).

Page 36

Cross Cutting Theme 2: Climate Action

Cross Cutting Theme 3: Fairer Enfield
Indicator

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

The gender pay gap is the difference in
the average hourly wage of all men and
women across a workforce. (Mean or
Average). The gender pay gap is not the
same as unequal pay which is paying
men and women differently for performing
the same (or similar) work. Unequal pay
has been unlawful since 1970.

3.9

Data to be published in
March 21 for Quarter 4

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21
For Average Hourly pay the pay of males is higher but has reduced across
the last three years. Data is updated as of 31st March of each year and next
update due on 31st March 2021.

Data to be published in March 21 for Quarter 4
2018/2019: 3.9% (males paid more on average)
2017/2018: 4.5% (males paid more on average)
2016/2017: 6.4% (males paid more on average)
Females have a higher rate of median pay than Males. Data updated as of
31st March of each year and next update due by 31st March 2021.

The gender pay gap is the difference in
the average hourly wage of all men and
women across a workforce. (mid-point or
Median) The gender pay gap is not the
same as unequal pay which is paying
men and women differently for performing
the same (or similar) work

-6.1

Data to be published in
March 21 for Quarter 4

Data to be published in March 21 for Quarter 4

A negative figure reflects Females receiving higher median pay
2018/2019: -6.1% (Females paid more median pay)
2017/2018: -2.9% (Females paid more median pay)
2016/2017: 1.5% (Males paid more median pay)

Page 37

Cross Cutting Theme 4: Early Help
Indicator
CHS051 Number of Housing Advice
Cases

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

728

756

908

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

957

693

Data Only Measure

COV 003g Community Hub Covid19
Financial Advice Calls

New KPI

301

1,066

Data Only Measure

Data collection commenced in August:
October 267; November 364; December 435.

COV 003h Community Hub Covid19
Food Calls

New KPI

222

765

Data Only Measure

Data collection commenced in August:
October 163; November 346; December 256.

COV 003i Community Hub Covid19
Isolation Calls

New KPI

177

386

Data Only Measure

COV 003j Community Hub Covid19 Other
Advice Calls

New KPI

378

887

Data Only Measure

COV 003k Community Hub Covid19 Total
Calls

New KPI

1,078

3,104

Data Only Measure

17

Data collection commenced in August:
October 302; November 383; December 202.
Data collection commenced in August:
October 857; November 1,228, December 1,019.

Indicator

COV 012g Number of People Fed at
North Enfield Foodbank

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

New KPI

Target

Annual Target
Notes
2020/21

8,501

3,068

5,140

Data Only Measure

Data Only Measure

DHP 001 DHP - Total amount of DHP
paid out

£1,574,685

£2,481,327

£795,798

£1,436,192

£2,100,643

LI23Total% Financial Assessments - %
completed within 21 days

zero cases

79.2%

89.5%

91%

90.1%

95%

95%

This is the figures for each quarter

Sustained good performance, improvements on historical performance
To Q3 2020/21: Assessments completed within 21 days – 1577; Total
Assessments – 1750 (90.1%)

Page 38

18

Page 39

Action Plan Subject: Complaints, FOI's and Complaints
Lead Director: Director of Law and Governance
The charts to the left show the current performance
for Freedom of Information Requests (FOIS),
MEQS and Complaints. The red line relates to the
target.
This cover the period (October-December) Quarter
3 of the financial year
The figures show generally a encouraging trend of
improvement at a challenging time of the pandemic
when council business as usual has been
interrupted. Performance is improving, as we are
aware performance across these areas was directly
impacted by the Covid Pandemic. Staff across the
council were redeployed into the Community Hub
and the Councils associated response. This had a
large and direct impact on these figures as staff
were asked to prioritise this work and were unable
to meet the corporate response times. This was
discussed and raised as part of the GOLD
meetings.
At the same time as an increase in performance,
there has been an increase in MEQs, FOIAs and
Complaints received, some of these resulted from
large scale projects and consultations.
During Q3 the lockdown subsided so that teams
were able to catch up and respond more timely to
requests.
Improvements that have been made are that all
heads of service now have access to Power BI
(reporting tool to see all open requests), the profile
and awareness of the Ombudsmen role in
Complaints is being raised, a new system for
recording complaints and requests for information is
being worked on and the central team is enabling
greater access to standard responses and
templates
The team are continuing to work on new system
and embed developments to enable better
monitoring and working with New Heads of
Services to ensure they understand their role and
the role of the teams that will support and drive up
performance.
Summary

1

Page 40

Initial reviews are now at 80%, this shows an
Decrease on Q2 of 3.3%. Performance is below the
95% target.
FOIS: For Quarter 2 for FOIs, performance was
87% below the 100% target. There is a slight
increase on Quarter 2.
MEQs: Quarter 2 for MEQ’s performance was 89%
answered in 8 working days against a target of
95%. This is a 5% rise in performance from Quarter
2

2

Page 41
Action Plan Subject: Temporary Accomodation
Lead Director: Executive Director Place
Total Numbers
Total numbers in temporary accommodation have dropped slightly from their height in August 2020
but remain slightly higher than at the start of the year. This is due to the large intake of people into
temporary accommodation during the first lockdown (‘Everyone in Policy’) and the difficulty in
securing move on accommodation. The housing market has slowed significantly during the last year.
Despite this numbers were reducing in the period until Christmas. January is traditionally the busiest
time of year for the Service due to the number of relationship breakdowns over the holiday period.
This is reflected in the increase in numbers during January. As Covid measures are progressively
lifted we expect the market to slowly gather pace.

Numbers in TA
3620
3600
3580
3560
3540
3520
3500
3480
3460
3440
3420

TA Entrants
The launch of the Outreach Service has increased successful prevention activity from 41.2% in
September to 66.1% in December. This is reflected in the numbers of households entering
temporary accommodation. The Market Management Team have secured 618 PRS properties so far
this year, of which 438 have been for prevention cases.

Entries to TA
120
100
80
60
40
20
0

Page 42

TA Exits
The numbers of households leaving temporary accommodation reflects the impact of the Covid
restriction on the housing market. We expect the number of exits to increase as the Covid
restrictions are lifted and communications strategy for the allocations policy starts to filter through.

Exits from TA
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
0

Routes out of TA:
The majority of households leaving temporary accommodation have made their own arrangements.
Social housing lets and our Homefinder scheme make up the bulk of the remainder. Cessation of
Duty (COD) cases have been put on hold during the lockdown and this is reflected in the low
numbers. There is a backlog of approximately 300 cases that will need to be addressed as we come
out of the current lockdown. We are aware that this will be a sensitive issue and will need to be
handled carefully to ensure the best possible outcome for residents.
The increased focus on prevention has meant that an increased number of properties have been
procured in the PRS for people losing their home. In total the Market Management Team have
secured 614 properties, of which 146 have been for people moving out of TA. These total figures are
not reflected in the chart below.

Move on Routes
COD
Social Housing
Own Accord
Enfield Let
PRS Flip
Gateway
Homefinders
Fresh Start
0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Page 43

Covid Emergency Accommodation Update
In addition to the 30 rooms we have at Ramada Hotel in Finchley for rough sleepers we procured a
further 30 rooms should emergency placements be required subject to the Severe Weather
Emergency Protocol (SWEP). This is funded by the SWEP fund. Within this allocation of rooms, we
have provided emergency accommodation for COVID symptomatic cases requiring self-isolation.
Transformation Programme Update
The Leadership Team were appointed in October 2020. Recruitment immediately began on
recruiting the managers and they are now largely in place. Recruitment is now underway to front
line roles to end the dependence on agency staff. We anticipate that this will be largely complete by
the end of April.
Outreach
The Outreach Team cover all our prevention activities.
The new service Launched in October 2020 with a skeleton staff. Despite this successful prevention
activities rose from 39.2% in September to 66.1% in December.
Work is underway to set up the Floating Support and early intervention teams. These will further
increase the proportion of successful interventions.
Sustainable Housing
The Team cover four key areas:
•
•
•
•

Residents in Temporary Accommodation
Domestic Abuse & Safeguarding
Duty to Refer and Discharge from institutions
Street Homelessness

Managers have been appointed for each core area. Recruitment is now underway for the front-line
staff.
Market Management
This team brings together the procurement and management of properties into a single team. The
restructure will be substantially completed by the end of March and the remaining vacancies are
being recruited to. This will include better management of our nightly paid portfolio to improve the
quality of accommodation.
Future Pressures
The impact of Covid cannot be underestimated. Increased pressures on emergency accommodation
from relatively new client groups have meant that the number of entrants into TA has increase over
the last 12 months.
As the lockdown measures are lifted, we expect to see a surge in new homelessness cases. Budget
provision has been made for a 20% increase in cases. This will be particularly relevant for PRS
evictions where landlords have been prevented from evicting their tenants. Data on court
proceeding in Enfield from the Ministry of Justice suggest that there is a large backlog of eviction
cases.

Page 44

The chart below sets out how possession cases have fallen during Covid.

A surge plan is being developed to address the expected increase in approaches. The ban on
evictions has been extended until the 21 May 2020 in line with the lifting of other Covid restrictions.
Nine Point Plan
The impact of Covid and successive lockdowns have impacted on our ability to deliver against the
nine-point plan. This was drawn up at the end of the first lockdown. Our targets for 2020-21 are:
1. Reduce the flow of new occupants into TA from 60 per month to 20 by year end
-

17 new entrants in February

2. Move residents/rough sleepers out of TA/interim housing into the PRS at a rate of 35 per month
till year end (Homefinders, Capital Letters)
-

151 to date

3. Procure additional PSL properties for Enfield Let achieving 66 by year end
-

16 to date (started October)

4. Purchasing/developing 73 units of accommodation for Housing Gateway to accommodate rough
sleepers using GLA funding by year end
-

2 purchased to date (21 in pipeline)

5. Converting 50 nightly paid properties to assured shorthold tenancies by year end
-

15 to date

6. Incentivising 98 residents to make their own arrangements to move out of temporary
accommodation
-

268 to date

7. Transfer 400 properties over to Enfield Let by the year end
-

15 transferred to end of Feb

8. Maximise lets into affordable housing achieving 140 by year end

Page 45

-

160 to end of Feb

9. Referring 177 people to the Single Homeless Prevention Service by year end
-

232 referrals to end of Feb

Page 46

Action Plan Subject: Sickness Absence
Lead Director: Director of Human Resources & Organisational Design

Two Year Trend

Commentary

Please note the following definitions for the
purposes of this report.
FTE: Full Time Equivalent is the hours worked
by one employee on a full-time basis.
Average FTE Days: This is the number of FTE
working days lost to sickness absence divided
by the number of FTE employees in the
Service.
Sickness absence includes sickness relating
to or due to Covid-19. 27% of Sickness in the
October-December 2020 was related to Covid
and as such understandably there is going to
be an increase in sickness rates
Compared to the same period last year
sickness levels are lower in the CEX and
Resources Department and higher in the Place
and People Department.
The rolling 8 quarters for sickness absence up
to Quarter 3 (October – December 2020 is in
the chart on the left-hand side. Current Council
wide performance is above target with 9.75
FTE days being lost to sickness every year.
The target is 7.96 FTE days lost which was the
London average in 2018/19.
The annual target relates to 0.66 days per FTE
per month and 1.99 FTE per quarter. The
departmental breakdown of sickness for
Quarter Three shows the following:
Average Sick Days per FTE for the Chief
Executive's Directorate is 1.17 which is below
the 1.99 target
Average Sick Days per FTE for the Resources
Directorate is 1.79 which is below the 1.99
target.
Average Sick Days per FTE for the People
Directorate is 2.22 which is above target.

1

Page 47

Two Year Trend

Commentary

Average Sick Days per FTE for the Place
Directorate is 3.42 which is above the 1.99
target but an improvement on Quarter 1 and 3
it should be noted that the Place department
has a large manual workforce where sickness
absence levels does tend to be higher. This
trend is not just within Enfield Council and is
typical within this workforce category.

2

Page 48

The above chart shows a breakdown in Sickness per month up to December across the Place
Department. Overall the Place Directorate has seen a decrease in absence since April 2020
despite the continuing pressures of Covid-19 and the disproportionate impact this has on front line
services who are not able to work remotely even if asymptomatic.
The continued close partnership between HR and the management & leadership team across
Place has contributed to this improved performance.

Place Department
General Comments:
• Manual workforces typically have higher levels of absence as the nature of the work is such
that it puts an additional strain on the employee – physically demanding; outside in all
weathers; greater consistent exposure to germs, rubbish, dirt etc.
• The combination of a frontline workforce still required to work and the consequences of the
Covid-19 pandemic will have had a direct impact on the absence stats for Place.
• There are a number of cases where the absence has been prolonged or directly caused by
the delay to non-urgent operations; standard outpatient care such as physiotherapy and
pain management clinics; access to mental health services; delays in getting GP
appointments and subsequent referrals.
• Within the manual workforce there is also a cohort of employees who are older and were
therefore nationally identified as being at risk and recommended to work from home and/or
shield during the first lockdown. With no option to work from home many of these
employees in Place were unable to work at the peak of the pandemic. In liaison with HR
and H&S, every effort was made to manage the risk and support the employees to return to
work at the earliest available opportunity minimising the impact on the absence statistics.
3

Page 49

•

Where there are long-term absence cases the Council is committed to the Dying to work
Charter and manages cases that fall under this sensitively and in line with the Charter and
our principles

Interventions to ensure absence is proactively managed:
• The Senior HR Adviser attends a monthly sickness board with the relevant Director and
Heads of Service to discuss absence cases and produce an action plan for all long-term
absence cases, which is proving successful.
• Short-term absence is also reviewed and managers and HR work together to manage in
line with the procedure, e.g. timely referral to occupational health, return to work meetings
arranged promptly and formal stage meetings arranged in line with trigger levels.
• Support services are offered to staff such as access to physiotherapy to aid an early return
to work, rather than long waiting times with NHS.
• Actively engaging and working with our Occupational Health provider to progress ill health
retirement requests in a timely manner despite the challenges of having to make such
significant decisions remotely.
People Directorate
Sickness absence is monitored on a regular basis. The Directorate acknowledges the slight
increase in sickness levels due to the transfer of IWE back in-house.
There are robust plans in place to address the overall absence levels across departments.
The HR Team meet regularly with Directors and Head of services to address not only sickness
absence but other issues across the teams.
In addition, the departments will be reinstating the bi-monthly DMT meeting where overall
sickness absence management is discussed.

4

Page 50
Action Plan Subject: Waste and Recycling
Lead Director: Executive Director Place
Two Year Trend

Commentary

Background
The amount of residual waste per household (known as
NI191) and the percentage of household material sent for
reuse, recycling and composting (known as NI192) is
reported to Government through the system called Waste
Data Flow and is available to the public once data verification
is complete.
The process is that data is collected and verified by the
London Borough of Enfield (LBE), North London Waste
Authority and then Waste Data Flow. Data remains
provisional until published which is generally around six
months after the quarter.

More recently, the Waste Implementation
Board (WIB) has oversight and
governance the changes made to the
waste and recycling service completing
with fortnightly collections starting March
2020. This includes scrutiny of the overall
performance.

Current Performance
The most recent available data is quarter
1 (1 April 2020 to 31 June 2020)

NI191 and NI192 data published through Waste Data Flow
forms part of the Councils corporate key performance
indicators and is monitored on a quarterly basis.

Graph 1 shows household waste
collected per kg per household – NI 191

Graph 1 – NI 191

Graph 2 shows the percentage of
household waste sent for reuse and
recycling and composting – NI 192

Household waste Collected (kg per Household)
700.0

633.0 631.6
604.0

600.0
482.7 485.0
457.0

500.0
400.0

306.3 320.4 321.5

300.0
200.0

154.0
165.0

162.4
143.6

Whilst most areas saw an increase in
residual waste due to Covid, the closure
of Barrowell Green Reuse and Recycling
Centre during the first quarter of 2020
mainly impacted on the amount of
residual waste generated. This meant
household waste collected per kilogram
per household for Q1 (2020/21) showed a
reduction from 162 per kilogram per
household to 143 per kilogram per
household.
The closure of Barrowell Green Reuse
and Recycling Centre due to Covid also
meant no recycling was collected from
the site. This has had impacted on
household recycling performance. This
meant the percentage of household
waste sent for reuse and recycling and
composting was 34.6 percent which is a
slight reduction compared to the previous
year (35.1 percent)

100.0
0.0

On-going Action Plan
As a result of budget pressures and a
year on year decline of recycling

1

Page 51

performance major service changes were
implemented.

Graph 2 – NI 192

On 4 November 2019, the collection
service was changed from a fortnightly
collection of mixed garden and food (free)
to introduce a new a separate weekly
food recycling service and a paid for,
fortnightly garden waste collection
service.

% H O U S E H O L D WA ST E S E N T FO R
R E U S E , R EC YC L I NG A N D
CO M P O ST I N G
45.00%
40.00%
35.00%

39.10%
36.90% 34.60%
35.10%

38.40%

35.10%
35.10%

34.10%
31.50%
30.80%

30.00%

31.20% 31.00%
29.30%

25.00%
20.00%

On 2 March 2020, the second phase of
the service changes were implemented.
The service changed from a weekly
collection of refuse and weekly collection
of dry recycling to alternate weekly
collections.
This means refuse and dry recycling is
collected on alternative weeks.

15.00%

Additionally, investment has been put into
communications (£100k per annum) and
two additional resident engagement
officers have been created to support
these changes.

10.00%
5.00%
0.00%
Quarter 4: 2019/20

Quarter 4: 2018/19

Quarter 4: 2017/18

Quarter 3: 2019/20

Quarter 3: 2018/19

Quarter 3: 2017/18

Quarter 2: 2019/20

Quarter 2: 2018/19

Quarter 2: 2017/18

Quarter 1: 2020/21

Quarter 1: 2019/20

Quarter 1: 2018/19

Quarter 1: 2017/18

The plan is that once the physical/
operational changes are embedded
(normally 3-6 months e.g. June to Sept
2020) a series of behavioural
engagement and communications would
then be deployed to support and change
resident behaviour to increase recycling
across the borough.
However, implementation of the service
change was disrupted by Covid-19 and
the subsequent impact from lockdown on
23rd March. Temporary changes were
made to the service in response to these
impacts; both to tackle reduced staff
numbers and the increased waste and
recycling generated by most of the
population being instructed to stay at
home.
As a result, behavioural engagement and
communications has been delayed.
The introduction of alternate weekly
collections of refuse and dry recycling
supported with education will result in

2

Page 52

resident behavioural change and
consequently will improve recycling
performance; likely to be seen in 2021/22
as the country return to a new normality.
Additionally, All London Boroughs were
required to produce a Reduction and
Recycling Plan (RRP) was approved in
July 2019 and sets out LBE’s
commitment to a range of measures that
will increase recycling performance in line
with the London Mayor’s Environment
Strategy.
Key measures include working with
businesses to reduce single use plastics
and developing a strategy for improving
recycling on estates and flats.
Work on achieving the objectives detailed
within the RRP has begun and will
continue until 2022.
Timescale for Improvement
Improvement is expected to take place as
Covid restriction are removed. We will
then be in a position to launch the
resident engagement work.
The annual % of recycling NI192 figure
will likely take longer to see an
improvement due to the impact of Covid19 on 2020/21 (quarters 1, 2, 3 and 4). It
is anticipated that the positive impact
expected in 2020/21 will be delayed until
late 2021/22.
We must be conscious that, like many
other industries, as we come out of
Covid-19 many more people are and will
remain working from home.
This is a significant change from where
we started with our modelling of waste
generated data back in 2018 and this will
need to be kept under constant review to
understand if it changes any of our
original assumptions and figures.

3

Page 53

4

Page 54
Action Plan Subject: Telephony and Customer Services
Lead Director: Executive Director Resources

Two Year Trend

Commentary

Context:
Customer Services is currently measured on how
many customer calls and webchats are answered,
as well as how long customers wait and level of
customer satisfaction.
Call answer rates and wait times are determined
largely by whether there are enough staff to meet the
demand and the volume of telephone calls
In terms of Call Volumes there was a decrease of
12000 calls between Quarter 2 and Quarter 3
following the seasonal pattern.
The next three charts demonstrate the impact of the
additional staff which were recruited to address
service demands; these staff were in place and
trained resulting in the significantly improved
performance in Q4 2019/20 and continued into the
2020/2021 financial Year.
The Answer Rate is now showing at 90% which is
well above the 88% target
94.7% of all calls were answered within 5 minutes
which again is well above the 90% Target
Customer Satisfaction with Web chat continues to
increase and is now at 86.8%.
The area where there has been a reduction in
performance is around average wait times. The
Average Wait time is at 3 min 42 Seconds, which is
above the 3-minute target. (The YTD average is at
2min 19seconds well within the target).
Average waiting times typically correlate with the
average handling times (AHT) per workstream or
transaction time. Council Housing AHT is roughly 12
minutes when compared with Homelessness and
General Enquiries which have 7 and five-minute
AHT respectively. Whenever calls exceed the AHT
because of complexity or other issues, the waiting
times will be impacted. Recently, since the last
quarter of 20/21, frontline officers have reported that
AHT especially for Council Housing is getting longer
as residents are beginning to share their Covid-19
related challenges during calls meant for reporting
their repair issues.. This has impacted performance.
In means of comparison
Q3 Council Housing Avg Wait Time = 9m 37s,

1

Page 55

Two Year Trend

Commentary

Q3 Homelessness /Temp Accommodation: Avg Wait
Time = 3m 38s,
Q3 General Enquiry Avg Wait Time = 0m 59s
Customer Operations also continues to deliver:
Covid-19 Related Support Work
Following the lockdown period in July 2020,
Customer Operation set up a dedicated line via the
contact centre (#1000 Option 7) as a business as
usual solution for residents who continued to
experience various forms of hardship which were
highlighted quite vividly during lockdown. Residents
calling this line are offered a variety of interventions
ranging from food support to financial hardship
intervention.
This service has seen a high take-up rate amongst
residents and serves as a vital boost to our early
intervention aspirations. Residents in need of food
are referred to our foodbanks, those experiencing
financial hardship are considered for benefits
maximisation and those experiencing social isolation
are referred to one of our partner voluntary sector
organisation for befriending.
Isolation Payments:
Customer Services team supported with the
resolution of this project assisting the Financial
Assessment Team with completing Isolation
Payment application forms. Contact Centre staff
helped eliminate non-eligible applications by
checking customers meet the required criteria.
Clinically Extremely Vulnerable outbound
calling:
• 10,000 total attempts
• 8,564 successful contacts
• 1,436 unreachable (repeat calls being made)
• Currently in talks with Business Rates for further
assistance with Local Restriction Support Grants and
Discretionary Grants
• LBE has received additional CEV cohorts totalling
12,700 who will be contacted by customer
operations officers to offer support.

Waste Campaign
Waste Campaign
• PGW renewals campaign started mid-January
2021. We have reached out to approximately 32000
garden waste subscribers via emails and letters.
• Approximately 11000 residents have renewed their
subscription already

2

Page 56

Two Year Trend

Commentary

• Web pages have been updated for online Renewal
subscription of garden waste
• New IVR has been put in place to take automated
payments for renewals. Residents can also make
payments at Pay points by cash or card
• Scripts have been updated on current Lagan CRM
systems – and customer services advisors, when
needed, are helping customers with renewal
subscription by taking payments

3

Page 57

Agenda Item 7

London Borough of Enfield

Cabinet
Meeting Date 21.04.21
Subject:

Use of High Needs Block funding to support Early
Intervention for children and young people
Cabinet Member: Cllr. Rick Jewell
Executive Director: Tony Theodoulou
Key Decision:

KD 5296

Purpose of Report
1.

This report details Enfield Council’s proposed response to help remedy the
current High Needs Block (HNB) overspend.

2.

The Schools Forum has recommended the approaches suggested and the
investments proposed.

Proposals
3.

Endorsement is sought from Cabinet for the use of High Needs Block (HNB)
funding to invest in two Early Intervention models:
 Speech, Language and Communication Needs (SLCN)
 Autism

Reason for Proposals
4.

In 2020, EY (previously Ernst & Young) carried out an independent review
of the High Needs Block and suggested several recommendations to aid
with management of its current overspend. Two recommendations
proposed were to:
 increase early intervention, being a cost-effective way of meeting needs;
 expand in-borough provision and reduce independent placements.

5.

In addition, the Enfield Poverty and Inequality Commission (EPIC) produced
‘All things being equal’ (2019), an independent report commissioned to
better understand the forces driving poverty and inequality in the Borough.
One of the responses to the barriers preventing accessible learning
opportunities is given as Recommendation 12 within the EPIC report;
seeking to ensure that children are ‘school-ready’. Part of this

Page 58
recommendation focuses on the need for development and implementation
of a robust way to commission speech, language and communication
services.
6.

Each project within this Cabinet report is based on an invest-to-save, early
intervention model of practice. The intention is to ensure that children and
young people receive a service as soon as it is required, helping to prevent
the need for more intensive intervention in the future. The models proposed
are designed to ensure that the Council meets its statutory obligations in
relation to children and young people with Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities (SEND), whilst also taking consideration of future need within
the Borough.

7.

As proposed changes are embedded into working practices within schools
and specialist services, it is envisaged that this will lead to a reduction in
requirement for more expensive support and yield savings to support
reduction in the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) overspend.

Relevance to the Council Plan
8.

Early intervention will help to sustain strong and healthy communities by
providing specialist support that enables children and young people with
special educational needs and/or disabilities to realise their potential and
achieve maximum independence, improving their learning and life
outcomes, and helping them to contribute to the local community and
workforce.

9.

The services support the Council’s aim to move, as far as possible, to a
position whereby Enfield children and young people are able to remain in
Enfield and be educated at their local school.

Background
10. Local Authorities have a duty under the Children and Families Act 2014 to
ensure that children and young people with SEND are supported to facilitate
their development, and to help them achieve the ‘best possible educational
and other outcomes’.
11. Provision of efficient and effective services helps ensure that children and
young people are given the same educational, health and social care
opportunities as children without SEND, preparing them for independence
and adulthood.
12. Building early intervention into services allows children and young people to
be supported as soon as they need to be, rather than waiting for
assessment without receiving interim support.

Page 59
Speech, Language and Communication Needs (SLCN)
13. It is proposed that Enfield invests in a Speech, Language and
Communication Hub (SLaCH) to support the speech, language and
communication needs (SLCN) of children and young people. The Hub will
be multi-disciplinary to support the associated additional needs – such as
occupational therapy and psychological therapy – of children who present
with SLCN.
14. The SLaCH model recognises that resilience needs to be created within the
education sector. This will be achieved by the Hub initially training and
supporting staff to deliver the model, and subsequently embedding and
maintaining it.
15. This project will provide a four-stranded model of delivery incorporating:





Training in identification
Targeted intervention
Parent- and carer-focused training and support
A practitioner- and school-based training programme

16. Expected outcomes of this SLCN model include:
 Fewer children and young people will require an Education, Health and
Care Plan (EHCP) to allow them access to a specialist SLCN treatment
pathway.
 By the end of the second year of the project, all schools will have
received a core offer to support them in identifying the needs of children
and young people.
 Children and young people will be identified early and will receive initial
support for their SLCN promptly.
 The core Speech and Language Service will be better prepared and
resourced for an expansion in education placements within Enfield,
helping to sustain the service and ensure the most intensive SLCN
service is provided for those most in need.
17. The total annual cost to provide the SLCN model is £454,526.
The full SLCN model proposal is available upon request; an implementation
plan is being developed for the academic year 2021-22.
Autism
18. It is proposed that Enfield provides additional investment to the Enfield
Advisory Service for Autism (EASA) to support, reinforce and extend its
current provision, both for families and for education settings.
19. Currently, the EASA service is available only to school-aged children and
young people. The proposal will extend the level of provision to include
Early Years (Under 5’s) and post-16’s; often the age groups most at need of
this type of provision.

Page 60

20. Similarly to the SLCN model, the project will create a specialist team across
education, health and social care. The team will incorporate early years
autism practitioners, specialist advisory teachers and teaching assistants,
parent support advisors, speech and language therapists, educational
psychologists and assistant educational psychologists. The objective of this
model is to strengthen Enfield’s autism partnership and service offer.
21. This project will provide a four-stranded model of delivery incorporating:





Support for families, including sibling support
Developing autism friendly settings
Targeted support for children/young people
Statutory and crisis support

22. Expected outcomes of the Autism model include:
 Fewer children and young people will require an Education, Health and
Care Plan (EHCP) to allow them access to a specialist autism pathway.
 The number of parents/carers receiving early support and training will
increase. This will lead to a greater number of families understanding
their child’s needs and being able to support development at home.
 A greater number of young autistic children will have improved school
readiness, having received early learning experiences in the home and
early years settings.
 The number of children experiencing effective transition from early years
to school settings will increase, and transitions from primary to secondary
school will be well-informed. The proportion of autistic young people
moving into positive destinations after school/college will increase.
23. The total annual cost to provide the Autism model is £276,294.
The full Autism proposal is available upon request; an implementation plan
is being developed for the academic year 2021-22.

Main Considerations for the Council
24. The SLCN and Autism services are funded by the Dedicated Schools Grant
(DSG) portion of the High Needs Block (HNB).
25. The total amount of recurrent funding requested is £730,820. Of this,
£454,426 will be used to fund the SLaCH for SLCN and £276,294 to
increase the reach of autism services provided by EASA.
26. Each proposal is based on the concept of an invest to save model, aligned
to the Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP). As funding is
invested in early intervention, the amount of funding required for statutory
provision will eventually reduce.

Page 61
27. The number of EHCPs is currently rising approximately 10% every year.
The most common types of primary need within Enfield EHCPs are:
Speech, Language and Communication Needs (SLCN), accounting for 32%
of EHCPs and Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) accounting for 26% of
EHCPs.
28. In terms of the SLCN project, an initial reduction target of 2% in the number
of EHCPs will allow the SLCN Service to deliver a sustainable service,
whilst also ensuring that children and young people receive intervention for
their SLCN as soon as possible. The Autism model similarly projects an
integrated local offer that enables improved provision early in each autistic
child/young person’s pathway, enabling identification of needs and
appropriate planning, training and provision. Demonstrably improved
confidence in local provision will reduce demand for more costly
alternatives.
29. To ensure that children and young people can attend school close to home,
and to reduce the associated costs of out of Borough placements, the
Council increased the number of special school places within Borough by
approximately 150 places for 2020/21. This is expected to increase by a
minimum of 86 by September 2022. Additionally, a private independent
special school will be opening in Enfield, which will cater to between 40 and
50 SEND pupils. The extra pupil places impact service delivery; putting
early intervention measures into place will ease pressure on services.
30. The SLCN and Autism proposals have been agreed by the Departmental
Management Team, the Education Resource Group and the Schools
Forum, subject to approval of detailed business plans.
Consultation
31. Consultation on both the SLCN and Autism proposals has taken place with
school representatives at the Schools Forum, Education Resources Group,
SEND Partnership Board, Early Years Board and Headteachers’ briefings.
Schools have committed to work in partnership to deliver the anticipated
outcomes.

Safeguarding Implications
32. Amongst other safeguarding requirements, all staff working for the services
will have a valid enhanced disclosure check regularly undertaken via the
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS). Adhesion to this requirement is
checked regularly. Staff are also required to be trained in Safeguarding,
Child Protection and Data Protection.

Public Health Implications
33. These projects will provide early intervention services to children and young
people with SEND, to help ensure that the wellbeing of service users –
children and young people with SEND – is addressed in terms of their

Page 62
educational, health and social care requirements. The service impacts
positively on children and young people’s employment, skills and
educational opportunities, as it helps address the identified needs of
children and young people in this area, including the requirements set out
within individuals’ Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs). The service
supports the service user in accessing opportunities that can lead to
employment, helps ensure their physical and mental wellbeing, and
promotes family resilience.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal
34. Predictive Equalities Impact Assessments have been completed for both
the SLCN (Appendix 1) and Autism (Appendix 2) proposals. No negative
impacts have been identified. These services comply with diversity and
equal opportunities requirements.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations
35. The proposals are not expected to have significant impact on the
Environment or Climate Change.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken
36. If current SLCN and autism services continue without systems change, the
Council will be unable to continue provision of its statutory services.
Investment for early intervention will allow the Council to meet its statutory
obligations and help ensure that Enfield’s children and young people with
SEND receive the provision that they require to help them reach their
personal and educational goals.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will
be taken to manage these risks
37. Educational establishments may initially be concerned that they have a lack
of resource to enable them to work directly with children and young people
with SLCN. This will be assuaged by the SLaCH working closely with
educational partners in designing the approach to be used, and in ensuring
that there is support available for them when needed.
38. There is a risk that the programmes will not meet their objective in ensuring
that provision is readily available for children and young people requiring
this type of intervention. Risk will be mitigated by making sure the proposed
business plans are robust in advance of the projects starting, and by putting
a management board into place to ensure that milestones and outcomes
are being met and expectations managed.

Page 63
Financial Implications
39. The DSG is projecting to be overspent by £8m at the end of 2020/21 and
this is mainly due to pressures on the High Needs Block where, for the last
few years, expenditure to meet demand has been higher than the funding
received. The deficit is expected to increase by a further £3m in 2021/22
based on original budget projections.
40. The authority has been looking at ways of managing and reducing the
deficit and during Spring 2020, EY carried out a high needs review and the
key recommendation from this exercise was to increase the range of early
intervention support for children. This led to these invest to save models
being developed and Schools Forum have agreed to £1m of funding from
the HNB to support these projects.
41. A summary of the financial implications for each project is shown below and
the funding for 2021/22 is included in original budget projections for the
financial year.

AUTISM PROJECT
Speech & Language Therapist
Occupational Therapist
Early Years Autism Practitioner
Early Years Autism Practitioner
Educational Psychologist
Assistant Educational Psychologist
Specialist TA
AET Consultant
TOTAL

FTE
0.50
0.50
0.50
1.00
0.50
0.50
1.00

FY
£35,759
£35,759
£35,759
£63,000
£43,000
£23,017
£30,000
£10,000
£276,294

21/22
£23,839
£23,839
£23,839
£42,000
£28,667
£15,345
£20,000
£6,667
£184,196

SPEECH, LANG & COMM PROJECT
Specialist Teachers
S&L Therapist
Occupational Therapist
Educational Psychologist
Manager
Admin Manager
Wellbeing Pack

FTE
2.00
2.00
0.50
0.50
0.50
1.00

FY
£103,520
£143,035
£35,759
£42,096
£42,244
£37,872
£50,000

21/22
£69,013
£95,357
£23,839
£28,064
£28,163
£25,248
£33,333

£454,526

£303,017

TOTAL

42. As detailed in the report, these initiatives are expected to reduce the
number of pupils with EHCPs and, therefore, the long-term support required
by some pupils. This will help to reduce expenditure and the financial
pressure on the high needs block. This position will need to be closely
monitored to ensure that the expected outcomes are achieved.

Page 64
Legal Implications
43. The Children and Families Act 2014 provides the statutory framework for
supporting children and young people with special educational needs. The
Act says that local authorities must exercise their functions under the Act
with a view to ensuring the integration of educational provision and training
provision with health care provision and social care provision, where it
thinks that this would promote the well-being of children or young people in
its area and improve the quality of special educational provision in its area.
In addition, local authorities, in exercising a function under the Act must
have regard to the need to facilitate the development of children and young
people and to help them achieve the best possible educational and other
outcomes as possible.
44. Schedule 2 of The School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations
permits a local authority to use high needs funding to provide additional or
targeted support for children and young people with special educational
needs and disabilities.

Options Considered
45. Currently, it is necessary for the Council to provide additional ad hoc
funding on an annual basis. This ensures that statutory obligations are met
as more children and young people access these services. This option is
costly and difficult to budget.

Conclusions
46. Funding from the HNB for the purpose of SLCN and autism early
intervention provision will help ensure the sustainability of these services as
Enfield’s population and SEND needs are growing, whilst benefitting the
children and young people by allowing them to access services more
quickly.

Report Author:

Date of report:

Caroline Fanning
Commissioning Manager (SEND)
caroline.fanning@enfield.gov.uk

22.03.21

Appendices
Appendix 1 SLCN Equalities Impact Assessment
Appendix 2 Autism Equalities Impact Assessment

Page 65
Background Papers
The following documents have been relied on in the preparation of this
report:
SLCN Bid for HNB Funding
Autism Bid for HNB Funding
SEND Places Update, June 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 67

Appendix 1

Enfield Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA)
Introduction
The purpose of an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) is to help Enfield Council
make sure it does not discriminate against service users, residents and staff, and
that we promote equality where possible. Completing the assessment is a way to
make sure everyone involved in a decision or activity thinks carefully about the likely
impact of their work and that we take appropriate action in response to this analysis.
The EqIA provides a way to systematically assess and record the likely equality
impact of an activity, policy, strategy, budget change or any other decision.
The assessment helps us to focus on the impact on people who share one of the
different nine protected characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010 as well as
on people who are disadvantaged due to socio-economic factors. The assessment
involves anticipating the consequences of the activity or decision on different groups
of people and making sure that:
 unlawful discrimination is eliminated
 opportunities for advancing equal opportunities are maximised
 opportunities for fostering good relations are maximised.
The EqIA is carried out by completing this form. To complete it you will need to:
 use local or national research which relates to how the activity/ policy/
strategy/ budget change or decision being made may impact on different
people in different ways based on their protected characteristic or socioeconomic status;
 where possible, analyse any equality data we have on the people in Enfield
who will be affected eg equality data on service users and/or equality data on
the Enfield population;
 refer to the engagement and/ or consultation you have carried out with
stakeholders, including the community and/or voluntary and community sector
groups and consider what this engagement showed us about the likely impact
of the activity/ policy/ strategy/ budget change or decision on different groups.
The results of the EqIA should be used to inform the proposal/ recommended
decision and changes should be made to the proposal/ recommended decision as a
result of the assessment where required. Any ongoing/ future mitigating actions
required should be set out in the action plan at the end of the assessment.
The completed EqIA should be included as an appendix to relevant EMT/
Delegated Authority/ Cabinet/ Council reports regarding the service activity/
policy/ strategy/ budget change/ decision. Decision-makers should be
confident that a robust EqIA has taken place, that any necessary mitigating
action has been taken and that there are robust arrangements in place to
ensure any necessary ongoing actions are delivered.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 68

Appendix 1

Title of service activity / policy/
strategy/ budget change/ decision that
you are assessing

Speech, Language and
Communication Hub (SLaCH)

Lead officer(s) name(s) and contact
details

Caroline Fanning
caroline.fanning@enfield.gov.uk

Team/ Department

Executive Director

Strategic Commissioning
(Children’s Services)
People Directorate
Tony Theodoulou

Cabinet Member

Rick Jewell

Date of EqIA completion

15.02.2021

SECTION 2 – Summary of Proposal
Please give a brief summary of the proposed service change / policy/ strategy/
budget change/project plan/ key decision
Please summarise briefly:
What is the proposed decision or change?
What are the reasons for the decision or change?
What outcomes are you hoping to achieve from this change?
Who will be impacted by the project or change - staff, service users, or the wider
community?
The Speech and Language Therapy Service is provided by Barnet, Enfield and Haringey
Mental Health Trust (BEH-MHT) and is an essential service for children and young people
with special educational needs. The current service requires further support to ensure that
children and young people are supported with their speech, language and communication
needs as soon as possible.
A multi-disciplinary team is currently being developed. This will create resilience within the
education sector by encouraging staff to become independent of the Council in identifying
and meeting the needs of children and young people. The multi-disciplinary team will form
a Speech, Language and Communication Hub (SLaCH) to support education settings.
The Hub will also work with families to help them work independently with their children.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 69

Appendix 1

SECTION 3 – Equality Analysis
This section asks you to consider the potential differential impact of the proposed
decision or change on different protected characteristics, and what mitigating actions
should be taken to avoid or counteract any negative impact.
According to the Equality Act 2010, protected characteristics are aspects of a
person’s identity that make them who they are. The law defines 9 protected
characteristics:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Age
Disability
Gender reassignment.
Marriage and civil partnership.
Pregnancy and maternity.
Race
Religion or belief.
Sex
Sexual orientation.

At Enfield Council, we also consider socio-economic status as an additional
characteristic.
“Differential impact” means that people of a particular protected characteristic (eg
people of a particular age, people with a disability, people of a particular gender, or
people from a particular race and religion) will be significantly more affected by the
change than other groups. Please consider both potential positive and negative
impacts, and, where possible, provide evidence to explain why this group might be
particularly affected. If there is no differential impact for that group, briefly explain
why this is not applicable.
Please consider how the proposed change will affect staff, service users or members
of the wider community who share one of the following protected characteristics.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 70

Appendix 1

Age
This can refer to people of a specific age e.g. 18-year olds, or age range e.g. 0-18 year
olds.

Will the proposed change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact
[positive or negative] on people of a specific age or age group (e.g. older or
younger people)?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.
The service is provided for the benefit of school-aged children and young people
that require intervention to help them with their speech, language and
communication needs. There are no further criteria, and no-one from this group
would be ineligible to receive a service if they meet these service conditions.
Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

Disability
A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a
substantial and long-term adverse effect on the person’s ability to carry out normal dayday activities.
This could include:
Physical impairment, hearing impairment, visual impairment, learning difficulties, longstanding illness or health condition, mental illness, substance abuse or other impairments.

Will the proposed change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact
[positive or negative] on people with disabilities?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.
The service is provided for the benefit of school-aged children and young people
that require intervention to help them with their speech, language and
communication needs. There are no further criteria, and no-one from this group
would be ineligible to receive a service if they meet these service conditions.
There will therefore be a positive differential impact.
Mitigating actions to be taken
None.
EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 71

Appendix 1

Gender Reassignment
This refers to people who are proposing to undergo, are undergoing, or have undergone a
process (or part of a process) to reassign their sex by changing physiological or other
attributes of sex.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on transgender people?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.
There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for schoolaged Enfield children and young people with a speech, language and communication
need, regardless of other protected characteristics.
Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

Marriage and Civil Partnership
Marriage and civil partnerships are different ways of legally recognising relationships. The
formation of a civil partnership must remain secular, where-as a marriage can be
conducted through either religious or civil ceremonies. In the U.K both marriages and civil
partnerships can be same sex or mixed sex. Civil partners must be treated the same as
married couples on a wide range of legal matters.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on people in a marriage or civil partnership?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected
There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for
school-aged Enfield children and young people with a speech, language and
communication need, regardless of other protected characteristics.
Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 72

Appendix 1

Pregnancy and maternity
Pregnancy refers to the condition of being pregnant or expecting a baby. Maternity refers
to the period after the birth and is linked to maternity leave in the employment context. In
the non-work context, protection against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks after
giving birth, and this includes treating a woman unfavourably because she is
breastfeeding.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on pregnancy and maternity?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected
There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for
school-aged Enfield children and young people with a speech, language and
communication need, regardless of other protected characteristics.

Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

Race
This refers to a group of people defined by their race, colour, and nationality (including
citizenship), ethnic or national origins.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on people of a certain race?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected
There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for
school-aged Enfield children and young people with a speech, language and
communication need, regardless of other protected characteristics.
Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 73

Appendix 1

Religion and belief
Religion refers to a person’s faith (e.g. Buddhism, Islam, Christianity, Judaism, Sikhism,
Hinduism). Belief includes religious and philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (e.g.
Atheism). Generally, a belief should affect your life choices or the way you live.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on people who follow a religion or belief, including lack of belief?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.

There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for
school-aged Enfield children and young people with a speech, language and
communication need, regardless of other protected characteristics.

Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

Sex
Sex refers to whether you are a man or woman.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on men or women?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.
There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for
school-aged Enfield children and young people with a speech, language and
communication need, regardless of other protected characteristics.

Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 74

Appendix 1

Sexual Orientation
This refers to whether a person is sexually attracted to people of the same sex or a
different sex to themselves. Please consider the impact on people who identify as
heterosexual, bisexual, gay, lesbian, non-binary or asexual.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on people with a particular sexual orientation?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.

There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for
school-aged Enfield children and young people with a speech, language and
communication need, regardless of other protected characteristics.
Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

Socio-economic deprivation
This refers to people who are disadvantaged due to socio-economic factors e.g.
unemployment, low income, low academic qualifications or living in a deprived area, social
housing or unstable housing.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on people who are socio-economically disadvantaged?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.
There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for
school-aged Enfield children and young people with a speech, language and
communication need, regardless of other protected characteristics.
Mitigating actions to be taken.
None.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 75

Appendix 1

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 76

Appendix 1

SECTION 4 – Monitoring and Review
How do you intend to monitor and review the effects of this proposal?
Who will be responsible for assessing the effects of this proposal?

The provider of this service is obliged to provide monitoring information on a
monthly basis.
This information will be assessed by the People’s Directorate Service
Development Team. Monitoring will be used to evidence the impact of the service
in terms of defined outcomes and performance indicators.
Additionally, data from the Speech, Language and Communication Hub will be
assessed by the Schools Forum, the High Needs Working Group and the SEND
Partnership Board.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 77

Appendix 1

SECTION 5 – Action Plan for Mitigating Actions.
Identified
Issue
N/A

Action Required

Lead
officer

N/A

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Timescale/By
When

Costs

Review
Date/Comments

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 79

Appendix 2

Enfield Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA)
Introduction
The purpose of an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) is to help Enfield Council
make sure it does not discriminate against service users, residents and staff, and
that we promote equality where possible. Completing the assessment is a way to
make sure everyone involved in a decision or activity thinks carefully about the likely
impact of their work and that we take appropriate action in response to this analysis.
The EqIA provides a way to systematically assess and record the likely equality
impact of an activity, policy, strategy, budget change or any other decision.
The assessment helps us to focus on the impact on people who share one of the
different nine protected characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010 as well as
on people who are disadvantaged due to socio-economic factors. The assessment
involves anticipating the consequences of the activity or decision on different groups
of people and making sure that:
 unlawful discrimination is eliminated
 opportunities for advancing equal opportunities are maximised
 opportunities for fostering good relations are maximised.
The EqIA is carried out by completing this form. To complete it you will need to:
 use local or national research which relates to how the activity/ policy/
strategy/ budget change or decision being made may impact on different
people in different ways based on their protected characteristic or socioeconomic status;
 where possible, analyse any equality data we have on the people in Enfield
who will be affected eg equality data on service users and/or equality data on
the Enfield population;
 refer to the engagement and/ or consultation you have carried out with
stakeholders, including the community and/or voluntary and community sector
groups and consider what this engagement showed us about the likely impact
of the activity/ policy/ strategy/ budget change or decision on different groups.
The results of the EqIA should be used to inform the proposal/ recommended
decision and changes should be made to the proposal/ recommended decision as a
result of the assessment where required. Any ongoing/ future mitigating actions
required should be set out in the action plan at the end of the assessment.
The completed EqIA should be included as an appendix to relevant EMT/
Delegated Authority/ Cabinet/ Council reports regarding the service activity/
policy/ strategy/ budget change/ decision. Decision-makers should be
confident that a robust EqIA has taken place, that any necessary mitigating
action has been taken and that there are robust arrangements in place to
ensure any necessary ongoing actions are delivered.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 80

Appendix 2

Title of service activity / policy/
strategy/ budget change/ decision that
you are assessing

Enfield Advisory Service for Autism
(EASA)

Lead officer(s) name(s) and contact
details

Caroline Fanning
caroline.fanning@enfield.gov.uk

Team/ Department

Executive Director

Strategic Commissioning
(Children’s Services)
People Directorate
Tony Theodoulou

Cabinet Member

Rick Jewell

Date of EqIA completion

15.02.2021

SECTION 2 – Summary of Proposal
Please give a brief summary of the proposed service change / policy/ strategy/
budget change/project plan/ key decision
Please summarise briefly:
What is the proposed decision or change?
What are the reasons for the decision or change?
What outcomes are you hoping to achieve from this change?
Who will be impacted by the project or change - staff, service users, or the wider
community?
The Enfield Advisory Service for Autism (EASA) is an essential service for children and
young people on the autism pathway. The service offers outreach provision to deliver
specialist, comprehensive advice, guidance and training for all people working with or
caring for autistic children and young people.
A multi-disciplinary team is currently being developed as part of the service, to ensure
provision of an integrated local offer.
This extension in service will have a positive impact on the existing EASA team by
enabling them to work in partnership with Social Care and Health in providing an holistic
service, benefitting service users by This will improve provision early on in each
child/young person’s pathway, enabling identification of needs and appropriate planning,
training and provision for children and young people, families and educational settings.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 81

Appendix 2

SECTION 3 – Equality Analysis
This section asks you to consider the potential differential impact of the proposed
decision or change on different protected characteristics, and what mitigating actions
should be taken to avoid or counteract any negative impact.
According to the Equality Act 2010, protected characteristics are aspects of a
person’s identity that make them who they are. The law defines 9 protected
characteristics:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Age
Disability
Gender reassignment.
Marriage and civil partnership.
Pregnancy and maternity.
Race
Religion or belief.
Sex
Sexual orientation.

At Enfield Council, we also consider socio-economic status as an additional
characteristic.
“Differential impact” means that people of a particular protected characteristic (eg
people of a particular age, people with a disability, people of a particular gender, or
people from a particular race and religion) will be significantly more affected by the
change than other groups. Please consider both potential positive and negative
impacts, and, where possible, provide evidence to explain why this group might be
particularly affected. If there is no differential impact for that group, briefly explain
why this is not applicable.
Please consider how the proposed change will affect staff, service users or members
of the wider community who share one of the following protected characteristics.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 82

Appendix 2

Age
This can refer to people of a specific age e.g. 18-year olds, or age range e.g. 0-18 year
olds.

Will the proposed change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact
[positive or negative] on people of a specific age or age group (e.g. older or
younger people)?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.
The service is provided for the benefit of autistic children/young people aged 0-25.
There are no further criteria, and no-one from this group would be ineligible to
receive a service if they meet these service conditions.
The proposed change will have a beneficial impact for autistic children and young
people aged 0-25.
Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

Disability
A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a
substantial and long-term adverse effect on the person’s ability to carry out normal dayday activities.
This could include:
Physical impairment, hearing impairment, visual impairment, learning difficulties, longstanding illness or health condition, mental illness, substance abuse or other impairments.

Will the proposed change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact
[positive or negative] on people with disabilities?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.
The service promotes equality of opportunity by ensuring that autistic children and
young people aged 0-25, their families and educational settings, are provided with
the knowledge and support needed to help ensure that they can realise their
potential and achieve maximum independence, improving their learning and life
outcomes.
There will therefore be a positive differential impact.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 83

Appendix 2

Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

Gender Reassignment
This refers to people who are proposing to undergo, are undergoing, or have undergone a
process (or part of a process) to reassign their sex by changing physiological or other
attributes of sex.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on transgender people?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.
There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for all
Enfield autistic children and young people aged 0-25, their families and educational
settings, regardless of other protected characteristics.

Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

Marriage and Civil Partnership
Marriage and civil partnerships are different ways of legally recognising relationships. The
formation of a civil partnership must remain secular, where-as a marriage can be
conducted through either religious or civil ceremonies. In the U.K both marriages and civil
partnerships can be same sex or mixed sex. Civil partners must be treated the same as
married couples on a wide range of legal matters.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on people in a marriage or civil partnership?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected
There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for all
Enfield autistic children and young people aged 0-25, their families and
educational settings, regardless of other protected characteristics.
Mitigating actions to be taken

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 84

Appendix 2

None.
Pregnancy and maternity
Pregnancy refers to the condition of being pregnant or expecting a baby. Maternity refers
to the period after the birth and is linked to maternity leave in the employment context. In
the non-work context, protection against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks after
giving birth, and this includes treating a woman unfavourably because she is
breastfeeding.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on pregnancy and maternity?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected
There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for all
Enfield autistic children and young people aged 0-25, their families and
educational settings, regardless of other protected characteristics.

Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

Race
This refers to a group of people defined by their race, colour, and nationality (including
citizenship), ethnic or national origins.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on people of a certain race?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected
There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for all
Enfield autistic children and young people aged 0-25, their families and
educational settings, regardless of other protected characteristics.
Mitigating actions to be taken
None.
Whilst no differential impact is expected, the service will continue to ensure that it
reaches all families that require provision. This includes ensuring that information
is available in other languages as required, and that the organisation providing the
service is able to impact ‘hard to reach’ communities.
EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 85

Appendix 2

Religion and belief
Religion refers to a person’s faith (e.g. Buddhism, Islam, Christianity, Judaism, Sikhism,
Hinduism). Belief includes religious and philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (e.g.
Atheism). Generally, a belief should affect your life choices or the way you live.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on people who follow a religion or belief, including lack of belief?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.

There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for all
Enfield autistic children and young people aged 0-25, their families and
educational settings, regardless of other protected characteristics.

Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

Sex
Sex refers to whether you are a man or woman.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on men or women?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.
There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for all
Enfield autistic children and young people aged 0-25, their families and
educational settings, regardless of other protected characteristics.

Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 86

Appendix 2

Sexual Orientation
This refers to whether a person is sexually attracted to people of the same sex or a
different sex to themselves. Please consider the impact on people who identify as
heterosexual, bisexual, gay, lesbian, non-binary or asexual.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on people with a particular sexual orientation?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.

There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for all
Enfield autistic children and young people aged 0-25, their families and
educational settings, regardless of other protected characteristics.
Mitigating actions to be taken
None.

Socio-economic deprivation
This refers to people who are disadvantaged due to socio-economic factors e.g.
unemployment, low income, low academic qualifications or living in a deprived area, social
housing or unstable housing.

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or
negative] on people who are socio-economically disadvantaged?
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected.
There will be no differential impact on this group; the service is provided for all
Enfield autistic children and young people aged 0-25, their families and
educational settings, regardless of other protected characteristics.
Mitigating actions to be taken.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 87

Appendix 2

None.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 88

Appendix 2

SECTION 4 – Monitoring and Review
How do you intend to monitor and review the effects of this proposal?
Who will be responsible for assessing the effects of this proposal?

The provider of this service is obliged to provide monitoring information on a termly
and annual basis, from the contract start date.
This information will be assessed by the People’s Directorate Service
Development Team. Monitoring will be used to evidence the impact of the service
in terms of defined outcomes and performance indicators.
Additionally, EASA reports to the Schools Forum, Russet House School
Governors, the Autism Partnership Group and the SEND Partnership Board.

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Page 89

Appendix 2

SECTION 5 – Action Plan for Mitigating Actions.
Identified
Issue
N/A

Action Required

Lead
officer

N/A

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020

Timescale/By
When

Costs

Review
Date/Comments

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 91

Agenda Item 8

London Borough of Enfield
Cabinet
Meeting Date:

21st April 2021

Subject:

Build the Change Programme

Cabinet Member:

Cllr Mary Maguire

Executive Director: Sarah Cary
Key Decision:

5280

Purpose of Report
.
1.
Provide an update on the positive progress of the Build the Change (BtC)
programme in relation to the Housing hub and Children and Family
Services hub
2.

Provide further details on the next phase of the Build the Change (BtC)
Programme, including the reconfiguration and refurbishment of the Civic
Centre, which will enable the relocation of staff from remote sites including
Claverings industrial estate.

3.

Provide details on the new flexible ways of working and supporting staff
wellbeing.

4.

Provide details on the investment into the Councils IT infrastructure and
end user equipment, which enables the Council’s new ways of working to
be delivered.

5.

The report also details a proposal for the development of a Mental Health
and Wellbeing hub, enabling staff from the Integrated Mental Health
Service, (currently delivering frontline services from 2 separate locations)
to be brought together in a single location to deliver a new re-provisioned
community hub service.

6.

Provide detail on the revised budget estimate to deliver the Build the
Change Programme and seek approval for the next phase of works to the
value of £15.2m to proceed.

Proposal(s)
Cabinet is recommended to:
7.

Note the allocations in the Council’s approved Capital 10 Year Programme
for the Build the Change Programme of £10.7m in 2021/22 and £15.2m in
2022/23, £6.7m in 2023/24 and £6.9m in 2024/25.

8.

Approve the spend of £14.5m in 2022/23 and £0.7m in 2023/24 in
accordance with this approved Capital 10 Year Programme at Council to

PL 20/114 C

Page 92
deliver completion of the Housing Hub at Edmonton Green, the Children &
Families Hub at Thomas Hardy House and improvements to the ground to
fourth floors of A Block and to D Block at the Civic Centre.
9.

Delegate authority to the Director of Property and Economy in consultation
with the Executive Director – Resources, to procure consultants and
contractors in accordance with Contract Procedure Rules as necessary to
deliver the programme.

10.

Approve the principle of a disposal of the Claverings industrial estate to
facilitate its redevelopment to provide modern, energy efficient employment
space. The proposed disposal route and business case will be the subject
of a cabinet report to follow.

11.

Approve the principle of a new Mental Health & Wellbeing Hub, which
would provide an easy point of access for any person who has care and
support needs for their mental health and any person who cares for
someone with mental health needs. Under these proposals staff from the
Integrated Mental Health Service currently located at 58-60 Silver Street
(Enfield Town) and the first floor of Park Avenue (near Enfield Town) would
be brought together in a single location (currently to be determined
following an options appraisal), to deliver in a new re-provisioned
community hub service.

Reason for Proposal(s)
12.

To modernise and streamline the Council’s property estate, enabling it to
operate from fewer but better equipped buildings which are designed to
meet the specific needs of residents, services and staff.

13.

To provide the necessary IT infrastructure to enable modern working
practices which are agile and flexible.

14.

To support a longer-term approach to capital investment in the Council’s
assets, supporting further analysis, business case development and
financial modelling to create a 10- year plan.

15.

To ensure savings and income identified in the MTFP can be delivered.

16.

To enable investment in the Council’s property estate, by generating
savings, increasing income and/or producing capital receipts where
appropriate.

Relevance to the Council’s Plan
17.

The Build the Change Programme portfolio aims to support the delivery of
the Council’s aims as set out in the Council Plan by:
• Creating a modern Council with fewer but better equipped buildings
designed to meet the needs of services and the residents that we
serve.
• Equipping our workforce with the appropriate tools and practices to
deliver our ambitious customer focused outcomes.
• Improving security for our employees, customers and data.

PL 20.114 C

Page 93
•

Consolidating staff in hubs in town centres will help drive footfall and
boost local businesses in those areas. The procurement processes
give the Council the opportunity to work with local businesses and
partners to develop a stronger local economy.

Background
Programme aims and objectives.
18.

19.

The Build the Change Programme was established to modernise and
streamline the Council’s property portfolio to deliver fit for purpose
premises, ensuring staff have the right tools and support to provide
effective, value for money services to residents and businesses in the
Borough.
Reducing the property portfolio enabling the Council to dispose of assets
and reduce operating costs, with income and savings reinvested into
service delivery.

20.

Establishing dedicated service hubs delivers better outcomes for Enfield
residents.

21.

The Programme supports the creation of a ‘Modern Council’ which has
spaces which have been designed to meet the specific needs of services
and staff, with a mixture of fixed and agile desks with greater focus and
emphasis on collaborative working, underpinned by the right IT
technology.

22.

In March 2020 as part of the Corporate Property Investment Programme,
Cabinet approved the principle of the Build the Change Programme and
approved investment of £ 3.9m in 2020/21 and £10.0 in 2021/22 to bring
forward the delivery of a Housing Hub at Edmonton Green, a Children &
Family Services Hub at Thomas Hardy House and feasibility work into
improvements at the Civic Centre.

23.

The Council’s working practices will be agile, flexible and focused on
outcomes and improving staff productivity. Furthermore, by providing staff
with the opportunity to shape how and where they work, giving staff the
right tools to work flexibly and more effectively, the Council will be able to
provide staff with a better work life balance, ensuring that Enfield Council
is an employer of choice that is better able to attract and retain highly skilled
staff.

24.

The Council’s Executive Management Team have agreed to several key
policy principles for the Build the Change Programme as follows:
•
•

Work is something that you do not a place that you go to.
Staff will be grouped into four categories, as follows:
i.
ii.
iii.

PL 20.114 C

Workplace / Specific Location Workers – who will need to
work in a specific location.
Home Based Workers – Staff who will work 100% of the time
at home or another personal location.
Flexible Workers – Staff who will mainly work from home and
attend an office approximately two days a week.

Page 94
iv.
•

Leadership Roles – Will have a visible presence & spend the
majority of their time in a council location.

The average desk to staff ratio should be 3.2 desks per 10 members
of staff.

Edmonton Green Housing Hub
25.

The development of the housing hub at Edmonton Green has reached
RIBA stage 4 (technical or final, design) sign off, with the tender process
finishing at the end of March 2021 and the building is due to be handed
over to the Housing service in the autumn of 2021. Housing staff have been
fully engaged and involved in the design of the Housing hub.

26.

Following the closure of John Wilkes House at the start of the 1st COVID
lock down, a decision was taken to close the building with staff continuing
to work from home, and the homelessness services being delivered via
telephone, online, and through the Enfield Town and Edmonton Green
libraries.

27.

The original project scope included the development of a homelessness
face to face service offer at Edmonton Green and Enfield Town libraries.
However, a decision was subsequently taken to develop and deliver
incorporate this activity within the development and delivery Community
Hubs in the libraries, being led by the Customer Experience Programme,
which incorporates access to homelessness services.

Thomas Hardy House Children and Family Services Hub
28.

The redevelopment of the Children and Family hub has reached RIBA
stage 3 (spatial coordination or detailed design). During the design process
it was identified that there was a requirement to relocate the Archive
Service from its current 1st floor location at Thomas Hardy House in order
to fully accommodate the service.

29.

A planning application for the change of use of part of the building and
external alterations to include additional windows on the first floor has been
lodged.

30.

Children and Family Services staff have been fully engaged and involved
in the design of the Children and Family Services hub to date. This will
continue throughout the detailed design stage and be extended to include
engagement with children, young people and families. Construction work
is planned to commence in October 2021 with the work programmed to
take approximately a year.

31.

The development of the Children and family hub at Thomas Hardy House
will allow the council to release or repurpose the use of Charles Babbage
House and will relocate several services out of the Claverings industrial
estate enabling teams within the hub to deliver better outcomes for service
users.

PL 20.114 C

Page 95
Civic Centre Business Hub
32.

Following the principles of the Build the Change programme, the council
has been evaluating how to consolidate more services into the civic centre.
This will improve collaboration, reduce operating costs and with
improvements, provide a modern working environment to support effective
and good service delivery.

33.

To inform this consolidation a detailed review of future accommodation
needs was undertaken with Heads of Services completing detailed
questionnaires together with face-to-face interviews. A test and fit exercise
using the data collected has demonstrated that by optimising usage there
is enough space within the Civic Centre to accommodate back-office staff
from many outlying buildings to relocate to the Civic Centre.

34.

The first phase will include refurbishment of the ground to second floors of
A Block and both floors of D Block in the Civic Centre and optimise space
usage, concentrate public facing meeting rooms on the ground floor and
create additional office accommodation on the 2nd floor. Some
reconfiguration of space on the 3rd to 5th floor of A Block and in B Block
will also be undertaken to reflect smarter ways of working. These works will
allow most the 300 staff currently based at Claverings to be relocated to
the Civic Centre.

35.

The Claverings industrial estate was built in the 1950’s and is no longer fit
for purpose. Buildings on the estate will not achieve the necessary energy
efficiency standards required by law in 2023. The council occupies 39%of
the estate and the remainder is leased to businesses and other
organisations. The council will therefore not be able to continue to lease
units within the estate to local businesses without undertaking the
necessary improvements to building energy efficiency. Initial estimates
suggest that the cost of this work could exceed £19m. Redevelopment of
the estate is likely to be more viable and options for the future of the estate
will be considered alongside the ongoing disposals strategy and be brought
forward for a decision in due course.

36.

In the meantime, it is recommended that the relocation of all relevant
Council staff currently based at Claverings to the Civic Centre is
progressed as part of the Build the Change Programme. Where the timing
and Energy Efficiency regulations allow vacated space will be let short term
whilst plans for redevelopment are developed.

37.

Investment in the Civic Centre will also allow the Council to terminate the
lease of the City Learning Centre (leased from Enfield Grammar School).
The peppercorn lease expires in June 2024, but the school has expressed
an interest in taking this back early. This would save £46,482 per year in
operating costs and allow services to collaborate easier.

38.

The 6th to 10th floors of A Block are currently occupied by three tenants.
The leases on 3 floors expire in 2025 and on 2 floors in 2028. There are,
however, break clauses in the leases in favour of the tenants which mean
that one or more of these floors could become vacant on 6 months’ notice
from 2021 onwards. Discussions are underway with the tenants to establish
their plans to inform options for a second phase of investment in the Civic

PL 20.114 C

Page 96
Centre involving these floors and/or B Block to allow all other staff at
Claverings and other outlying sites to be relocated.
39.

As part of a small programme of work to improve the office environment to
support staff in the Civic, welfare improvements have been made to B Block
toilet facilities and an additional area is being created for staff to reheat
food and sit and relax.

40.

As part of our investment in Culture, in line with the new Culture Strategy,
the Civic Centre will also form part of the borough’s cultural infrastructure.
This will include relocation of the Local Studies and Archive in a move
intended to indicate the central importance of heritage to the borough with
the reading room in a ground floor location adjacent to the reception area
raiding its profile and improving accessibility. The facility is being designed
to achieve National Archives accreditation. The reception area of the Civic
Centre will also provide additional gallery space with revolving exhibitions
of local art and artifacts from the archives.

Mental Health Wellbeing Hub
40

The Integrated Mental Health Service is currently located at 58-60 Silver
Street (Enfield Town) and the first floor of Park Avenue (near Enfield Town).
It is proposed to bring the service comprising a multi-disciplinary team of
82 staff together in a single location to deliver in a new re-provisioned
community hub.

41

It is proposed that Mental and Wellbeing Hub service will provide
community-based specialist mental health services, a VCS led community
café for out of hours crisis support, along with a service helping individuals
maintain and improve their long-term health conditions.

42

These additional services will provide low-level step-down support, assist
in preventing social isolation and aim to reduce possible escalation of an
individual’s mental and physical health conditions. The need to provide
support for long term physical health conditions and in-particular for those
mental health needs, is a well referenced approach.

43

In line with the Council Plan the proposal is aimed at reducing social
isolation and Improve mental health by making every contact count,
increasing the use of social prescribing and developing inclusive
community spaces and services.

44

The proposal will facilitate the closing of 58-60 Silver Street, which offers
poor accommodation for staff, and is not fit for purpose for service users.

45

A detailed business case, including location of the new hub, will be
developed and brought forward for a decision in due course.

Main Considerations for the Council
46.

The Build the Change programme is a central part of SAMP and the
delivery of a modern council providing good quality services to residents.
Since the March 2020 CPIP report, the programme has moved quickly and

PL 20.114 C

Page 97

47.

48.

professionally to progress the Housing Hub at Edmonton and Children and
Families Hub in Enfield Town.
The decision in this report allows the next step in a phased programme of
work. The proposal costs represent the most favourable financial option to
ensure staff have fit for purpose office space, compared to taking no action.
The programme when finished will allow the council to cease the use of
leased office buildings and have staff operating out of modern facilities. A
number of our current facilities require substantial investment which will not
be required if this programme is delivered. There are several operational
savings that have been identified in the MTFP which will not be achieved if
the programme is not delivered.

Safeguarding Implications
49.

There are no specific safeguarding issues related to this report.

Public Health Implications
50.

There are no specific public health issues related to this report.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal
51.

The proposal is to relocate services into service hubs that are currently
based in a range of outlying buildings including Charles Babbage House,
Triangle House, Claverings Industrial Estate and City Learning Centre into
three main hubs, Thomas Hardy House, Edmonton Green and the Civic
Centre.

52.

The colocation of these services into service specific hubs, in town centre
locations accessible from much of the borough by public transport will offer
significant benefits to residents through the co-location of related services
in single locations. In addition, there are benefits to the service through
cross team inter department working.

53.

The location in a reduced number of buildings will also assist in ensuring
the provision of more consistent, better maintained accommodation at a
lower cost.

54.

Terminating the leases at Triangle House and the City Learning Centre and
the release of Charles Babbage House, John Wilkes House and buildings
at Claverings for redevelopment will offer significant reductions in revenue
costs as well as the opportunity for securing Capital receipts as set out in
this Cabinet Report.

55.

The creation of service hubs in a central, accessible location is designed
to offer benefits to a wide range of service users and their families who
currently access services at a number of different locations across the
borough. Some of these properties are no longer fit for purpose (especially
at Claverings Industrial Estate) and will require major investment or
redevelopment to deliver modern service. The location of some services,
at Claverings in particular, has a negative impact on some users.

PL 20.114 C

Page 98
56.

Creation of service specific hubs is widely acknowledged as the most
efficient way of delivering a comprehensive service for the benefit their
users as well as being a cost-effective route and has been advocated by
the recent Ofsted Inspection of the Children and Family services.

57.

The new location may be less convenient for some users who live or work
close to one of the current locations. However, the choice of the hub
locations in central town centre locations with public transport links to all
parts of the borough and adjacent car parking is designed to ensure the
maximum accessibility to the widest range of users. A single purpose
designed facility with DDA compliance designed in situated in a prominent
town centre location is considered to offer positive impacts on users.

58.

There will be some loss of community space as part of the redevelopment
of the Children and Family Services hub at Thomas Hardy House however,
there are a wide range of community halls, community centres, school
halls, libraries with community meeting rooms, and cultural buildings such
as Millfield House, Salisbury House and Forty Hall in addition to committee
and meeting rooms at the Civic Centre that currently have capacity and
should be able to accommodate any displaced users.

59.

To ensure that the Build the Change Programme is fully inclusive a
representative of the disability working group sits on the programme board
and has been involved in the specific hub design process.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken
60.

If staff are not relocated from the Claverings Industrial Estate prior to 2023,
without significant investment in those premises, they will be occupying
premises that the Council could not legally rent to any other organisation.
Whilst this would not be illegal it would not be compliant with the Council’s
Strategic Asset Management Plan or Climate Change Action Plan.
Refurbishment of the accommodation to reach the required energy
efficiency standards would cost in the region of £19.6m, alternatively
renting suitable accommodation could cost in the region of £1.2m per year.

61.

There are several savings identified within MTFP which may not be
achieved.

62.

Current office conditions are not conducive and therefore there is a risk that
the council will not be able to retain quality staff or attract new staff to the
council if the council does not proceed with this project.

63.

Failure to introduce the new ways of working and continue to operate
services out of the current range of buildings is not efficient and encourages
silo working.

PL 20.114 C

Page 99
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions
that will be taken to manage these risks.
Risk
Mitigation
Workforce do not / unable to
•
Workforce workstream established to
adapt to new ways of
oversee and engagement with staff
working.
across the council, supplemented by
training and support for staff.
•
Communications workstream established
which includes New Smarter Ways of
Working.
•
Use of change champions within Services
to support successful change.
Construction delayed or The current contract framework being used to
procured poorly and cost deliver the Edmonton Green Housing hub allows
overruns.
the council to confirm contract values before
formally entering the contract. Once agreed the
contract is agreed the costs are fixed subject to
change only if there is a variation to the
specification. Although the contract vehicle has
yet to be selected for Thomas Hardy House a 16%
contingency has been allowed for contract and
professional services which should ensure mitigate
against cost overruns. There is a strong project
team managing the project to ensure delivery
remains on schedule.
Resources
required
to Robust resource model planning to understand the
successfully deliver the resources required throughout the lifecycle of the
Programme and Projects Programme Costs for Build the Change resources
within the Build the Change have been included within the financial model.
are insufficient and / or not
available when needed.
Poor and / or inadequate Programme and Projects that sit within the BtC
governance and control
Portfolio have robust governance and controls
which includes Boards and Workstreams, and
regular reporting to the Council’s Strategic Delivery
Board and Executive Management Team.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations
64.

The Build the Change Programme will support the Council’s aim to become
carbon neutral by 2030, as set out in the Climate Action Plan. By moving
services out of old non energy efficient buildings the Council will be able to
reduce its direct carbon emissions by disposing of buildings and making
improvements to the energy consumption in the buildings that staff
occupy. A separate report details the Building Sector Decarbonisation
Fund which will assist in reducing the carbon emissions from the Civic and
other council buildings.

65.

Furthermore, the Council’s new Smarter Ways of Working policy will reduce
carbon emissions because staff classified as a ‘flexible worker’ (the
majority of employees at the Council) will work remotely more often which
will reduce travel to and from the office.

PL 20.114 C

Page 100
Financial Implications
Summary
66.

The proposal included in this report represents the most favourable
financially to ensure staff have fit for purpose office space compared to
taking no action (Table 1).

67.

The capital investment set out in this report has been incorporated into the
Ten-Year Capital Programme presented at March Council. The total net
capital expenditure is £27m (net of assumed capital receipts).

68.

A prudent approach to the business case has been undertaken. A
significant contingency has been included for this programme which will
allow unforeseen circumstances to be managed. This is covered in
paragraph 84. In addition, an interest rate of 3.5% has been assumed for
the purposes of the business case.

69.

This programme presents significant revenue savings, such as reducing
building operating costs, which are offset by the interest and loan
repayments to fund the investment. The net ongoing annual implication
will be £0.1m cost. The MTFP already includes a forecast of these
implications within the five-year revenue budget. This proposal will reduce
ongoing maintenance costs of these buildings as the number of operational
sites are reduced. This net annual cost increases by £0.2m should
alternative appropriate council accommodation not be available for
remaining council services based in Claverings. Lost rental income at
Claverings of £0.4m will arise should alternative council owned
accommodation not be found for the existing lettings.

70.

The future of the Claverings site will be the subject of a future Cabinet
report in terms of options for either development or sale. For the business
case purposes the capital receipt is applied to finance the programme. For
more detail on the impact of this see part 2.

NPV, and Cashflow, Budget Implications
71.

Financial appraisal has been calculated for three scenarios, considering
the wider implications of the full programme on the office base of back
office staff currently located at the Claverings Industrial Estate. All three
scenarios include the establishment of hubs at Edmonton and Thomas
Hardy House and create fit for purpose office space for staff.

72.

As covered in paragraphs 35 and 60, the Claverings industrial estate is no
longer fit for purpose, requiring energy improvement and refurbishment
works. The Base Case scenarios consider the options of addressing
Claverings without the progression of this programme to create a Civic
Centre Hub to accommodate staff.

73.

Base Case A is to not create a hub at the Civic Centre, and to relocate staff
from Claverings to rented accommodation as there is not enough space in
sites owned, and to continue with the Civic Centre in its current condition
and configuration.

PL 20.114 C

Page 101
74.

Base Case B is to not create a Civic Centre Hub and to make a capital
investment at Claverings to improve the energy efficiency of the entire site,
and refurbish the space occupied by Council services.

75.

The third scenario is to complete the Build the Change Programme as
proposed in this report. This includes a two-phase approach to creating a
Civic Centre Hub, as laid out in paragraphs 34 and 38.

76.

Each scenario has been financially modelled and appraised, with a Net
Present Value (NPV) calculated. The NPV discounts future cashflows to
their present value, to allow comparison of the costs and benefits of the
scenario to determine if the benefits outweigh the costs.

77.

NPV has been calculated for each scenario using a discount rate of 3.5%
for cashflows over 55 years, using prudent asset valuations and healthy
contingencies for capital expenditure. The most favourable NPV is
generated by the Build the Change programme as proposed in this report.

Table 1 – NPV and Cashflow Impacts
Base Case A
£

Income and
Savings
Expenditure
Net Financial
Position –
(Surplus)/Deficit
NPV at 3.5%

Base Case B
£

(84,144,309)

(71,424,309)

Proposed Build
the Change
Programme
£
(109,237,528)

118,545,168

163,128,621

163,525,811

34,400,859

91,704,312

54,288,283

19,362,107

25,767,511

13,715,910

78.

The proposed Build the Change programme is the preferred option as it
generates the most favourable NPV when modelled and offers cost
avoidance around Claverings through the creation of a Civic Centre Hub to
accommodate relevant staff.

79.

The proposed Build the Change Programme moves to a positive NPV if the
arising lost income from Claverings is mitigated and alternative appropriate
council accommodation is available for remaining council services based
in Claverings.

80.

The following finance implications focus on the proposed business case.

81.

For purposes of the business case it has been assumed that sites released
through the works to establish Hubs will be disposed of for a capital receipt
and that these receipts will be applied to fund the programme.

82.

Table 2 below provides a summary of the Build the Change capital
programme with estimated capital costs per hub. A key feature of this Build
the Change business case is the future decision on the Claverings site; this
will be subject to a refreshed business case once full options appraisal has

PL 20.114 C

Page 102
been undertaken. Table 6 in Part 2 shows the impact on the business case
with and without a receipt for Claverings.
Table 2 – Snapshot summary Table of Proposed Build the Change Programme

Capital

Civic
Centre Hub
– Phase 1

Civic
Centre Hub
– Phase 2

Edmonton
Hub

Thomas
Hardy
House
Hub

Total

£

£

£

£

£

Construction
and
Consultancy
Costs
Cost ICT

14,611,999

8,912,400

3,384,559

6,522,077

33,431,035

867,761

695,753

417,879

512,529

2,493,922

Total Cost

15,479,760

9,608,153

3,802,438

7,034,606

35,924,957

Contingency

2,465,392

1,836,751

152,938

1,307,018

5,762,099

Capital
Expenditure

17,945,152

11,444,904

3,955,376

8,341,624

41,687,056

Assumed
Receipts
Net
Borrowing

(14,928,000)
17,945,152

11,444,904

3,955,376

8,341,624

26,759,056

Impact on Capital Costs and Borrowing of the Proposed Build the Change
Programme
83.

The Build the Change Budget in the 10 Year Capital Programme is £41.7m.
This was approved by Council on 2nd March 2021 in KD 5210. £13.6m was
approved for spend in KD4792 and KD5006 in 2020. This report seeks
approval to spend £15.2m from this agreed programme. Future reports will
seek approval to spend the remaining £12.9m to complete the programme.
Spend to date is set out in the Capital Programme Monitoring Reports and
is on track. This profile is shown in Table 4.

84.

During 2020/21 financial modelling of Build the Change has been
conducted which forecasts the total capital expenditure of the programme
as £41.7m. The £41.7m includes healthy provisions with 16% allowed for
construction and consultancy costs, and 20% for digital expenditure, which
are assumed to be able to accommodate inflationary pressures over the
build period. These contingencies total £5.8m and if these are not called
upon, the capital expenditure is forecast to be £35.9m. Their inclusion will
allow the Programme to manage unforeseen circumstances within the
budget and contingency funds will be released by agreement of the Capital
Finance Board. Tables 2 and 3 present estimated capital costs per hub and
the Build the Change programme has flexibility to manage costs within the
overall budget envelope of £41.7m. Budget may be reprofiled across hubs
following finance procedures and may not exceed the approved total
programme budget.

PL 20.114 C

Page 103
Table 3: Capital Budget included in 10 Year Capital Programme by Hub and
Year

Civic
Centre
Capital
Expenditur
e
Edmonton
Green
Capital
Expenditur
e
Thomas
Hardy
House
Capital
Expenditur
e
Total
Total
Contingen
cy
Total
Capital
Expenditu
re

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Totals

£

£

£

£

£

£

872,779

3,615,328

8,963,963

5,751,603

5,884,240

25,087,913

390,638

3,411,800

0

0

0

3,802,438

593,106

2,532,471

3,909,029

0

0

7,034,606

1,856,523

9,559,599

12,872,992

5,751,603

5,884,240

35,924,957

303,478

1,143,104

2,332,595

972,000

1,010,922

5,762,099

2,160,001

10,702,703

15,205,587

6,723,603

6,895,162

41,687,056

Table 4 – Approval to Spend Capital Funds Breakdown

Already
Approved
Seeking
Approval
To be
sought in
future
Total

85.

2020/21
£

2021/22
£

2022/23
£

2023/24
£

2024/25
£

Total
£

2,160,000

10,702,704

744,881

0

0

13,607,585

0

0

14,460,706

747,025

0

15,207,731

0

0

0

5,976,578

6,895,162

12,871,740

2,160,000

10,702,704

15,205,587

6,723,603

6,895,162

41,687,056

£2.5m has been included to cover additional digital costs arising from Build
the Change. These additional costs are created by the programme and
associated with digital infrastructure and desk equipment. A bundle of
peripheral equipment to deliver flexibility for staff to work from any location,
including home, has also been included, based upon detailed product
specifications. End user computer devices are not in scope of the Build the
Change programme and are to be captured and picked up by Digital
Services as this programme does not require users to have a higher
specification or different device to what is already included as part of the
business as usual refresh programme in the A Modern Council - Digital
Business Portfolio 2020 – 2030 report which attended Cabinet on 3rd
February 2021, KD5223.

PL 20.114 C

Page 104

86.

The Programme will be financed through borrowing with interest and MRP
charged to revenue. The net borrowing requirement is £26.8m with notional
interest costs calculated at 3.5% of £32.8m. This level of borrowing and the
corresponding financing costs have been included in the Treasury
Management Strategy which attended Council on 2nd March 2021, KD
5211.

Impact on Revenue of the Proposed Build the Change Programme
87.

The Medium-Term Financial Plan 2021/22 to 2025/26 approved by Council
on 2nd March 2021 (KD5213) includes the revenue implications of the Build
the Change Programme.

88.

The total revenue savings from the programme are £1.2m. When capital
works are completed, the annual revenue cost, including MRP and notional
interest is £1.3m. Whilst there is a cost to the Council, the programme
covers a majority of the financing costs, modelled at 3.5%, in the budget
annually through the savings it generates.

89.

Interest costs and MRP are a revenue cost and are calculated based on
interest rates. Interest rates can fluctuate upwards or down. The model is
sensitive to changes in interest rates. A 50-year annuity loan with the
PWLB has an associated interest rate of 2.39% on 17th March 2021, which
is less than the 3.5% modelled. A 0.5% change in the interest rate
corresponds to £5.4m in interest costs over the repayment period
modelled, with an annual revenue impact of £98k.

Table 5: Revenue Impact
MTFP Impact during Capital Works

Savings
Civic Centre
Hub
Edmonton Hub
Thomas Hardy
House Hub
Total Savings
Revenue Costs
– including
interest and
MRP
Civic Centre
Hub
Edmonton Hub
Thomas Hardy
House Hub
Total Revenue
Cost
Net Revenue
Impact
PL 20.114 C

Annual
Impact once
Fully
Implemented

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

2024/25
£000

2025/26
£000

0

0

(47)

0

(283)

£000 (not
inflated)
(330)

0
(406)

0
0

(219)
(219)

0
0

0
0

(219)
(625)

(406)

0

(485)

0

(283)

(1,174)

297

(5)

(4)

(5)

(5)

715

37
104

(1)
(22)

97
132

0
142

0
0

133
436

438

(28)

225

137

(5)

1,284

32

(28)

(260)

137

(288)

110

Page 105
Potential Income
loss from
Claverings
Potential
Alternative
Strategic
Accommodation
Net Revenue
Impact

0

0

400

0

0

400

0

0

229

0

0

229

32

(28)

369

137

(288)

739

90.

The net revenue impact of moving office space from Claverings to Hubs is
£0.1m. Based on the assumption in the model that the Claverings site will
be sold, another cost will arise to relocate the strategic space occupied by
the Council. This is estimated to have an annual cost of £0.2m.

91.

In addition to this, £0.4m rental income associated with the site will be lost.
This income would also be lost from 2023 onwards without the Build the
Change programme due to a change in legislation which prevents external
rent of the site, as referenced in paragraph 35. Opportunities will be taken
to mitigate this income loss by exploring other Council owned sites which
may be suitable for tenants.

92.

A contingency budget for incidental revenue costs in the region of £20k will
be made available to recognise that not all costs may be able to be charged
to capital from a technical accounting reasons.

Benefit Analysis
93.

A number of qualitative benefits are anticipated to arise from this proposal
which should be considered alongside the quantitative. A number of these
are summarised in the following points.
•

Delivery of the culture change desired by staff. This is expected to
provide staff with a better work life balance, ensuring that Enfield
Council is an employer of choice that is better able to attract and retain
highly skilled staff.

• Support the Council’s aim to become carbon neutral by 2030 as
referenced in paragraphs 64 and 65.

•

A reduced property portfolio to be repaired and maintained will enable
more investment to be made repairing and maintaining other Council
properties, including the hubs to be created.

•

Improved security and safer working environments for staff based in
hubs by reducing the number of remote and outlying offices with small
numbers of staff travelling to and working from.

•

The co-location of services and hub designs incorporating collaborative
space there will be greater opportunities for teams to network and
collaborate in service delivery.

•

Modern, fit for purpose hubs will support effective and good quality
services and deliver better outcomes for Enfield residents. This will

PL 20.114 C

Page 106
include the co-location of services which are easily accessible by public
transport as noted in paragraph 52.
•

Service specific hubs as included in this proposal are noted for being
an efficient, and cost effective, way to deliver comprehensive services
and have been advocated by Ofsted, as referenced in paragraph 56.

Legal Implications
94.

The Council is required as a best value authority under section 3 of the
Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard
to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

95.

The Council also has a general power of competence under section 1(1) of
the Localism Act 2011 to do anything that individuals may do, provided it is
not prohibited by legislation. A local authority may exercise the general
power of competence for its own purpose, for a commercial purpose and/or
for the benefit of others.

96.

Public law principles will apply to the decisions made by the Council,
including the Council’s duty to take account of its fiduciary duty and to act
prudently with public monies entrusted to it. The Council is also under a
general duty to act reasonably and show that its decisions are made after
having given due and proper consideration to all relevant factors.

97.

The Council must comply with all requirements of its Constitution including,
its Property Procedure Rules, Contract Procedure Rules and Financial
Regulations.

98.

Pursuant to S.123 of the Local Government Act 1972 the Council has the
power to dispose of land in any manner it wishes, subject certain provisions
and has a statutory duty to obtain the best price reasonably obtainable
subject to certain exemptions.

99.

In accordance with the Council’s Property Procedure Rules the inclusion of
property on the disposals programme requires approval either by the
appropriate cabinet member or by Cabinet itself. Specific advice will be
provided by Legal Services at the time of a property coming forward for
disposal.

100. Where any procurements are required, these must be carried out in
accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (where applicable)
and the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules.
101. In respect of works to Council buildings constituting ‘development’ the
Council will need to apply to the Local Planning Authority for planning
permission pursuant to section 57 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 and determination of such will be made pursuant to regulation 3 of
the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992.
102. Any legal agreements arising from the matters described in this report must
be approved in advance of commencement, by Legal Services on behalf
of the Director of Law and Governance.
PL 20.114 C

Page 107

Workforce Implications
103. The implementation of build the change programme will introduce new
ways of working across the entire workforce. The changes will impact on
where and how officers discharge their duties by providing a range of
different working arrangements to ensure officer resources are deployed to
achieve enhanced efficiency and effectiveness.
104. The newly created smart working policy will support the council in
delivering the key principles of build the change and the vision of being a
‘modern council’.
105. There will be a need to support the workforce in adjusting to the new ways
of working through clear and effective communication initiatives and tools,
including a planned set of build the change briefing sessions. These
sessions will be led by the build the change programme board, supported
by EMT.
106. To support and enable an inclusive culture, it is important to note, where
there are no changes to staff location, these staffing groups should be kept
informed of the wider changes across the council to ensure they remain
engaged and feel included in the wider culture changes, the programme is
seeking to achieve.
107. To support and enable the culture changes, the council has developed a
set of clear expectations for managers and staff whilst working remotely or
from home; along with key protocols whilst in the office.
108. It is important that managers feel empowered for ensuring that service
needs take priority whilst ensuring staff are treated fairly and trusted to take
responsibility for themselves and their work when working remotely.
109. The council will continue to support the workforce to ensure staff look after
their mental health and wellbeing; including taking into account staff whose
personal circumstances are not conducive to home working.
110. In order to enable the smooth implementation of the new ways of working,
the Build the Change Leads have worked loosely with the recognised trade
unions and the six Staff Network Groups.
111. Change champions have also been established for Housing and Children
and Family Services. The Champions are actively involved in the design of
the hubs, and change process moving forward. It is essential that
management continue to support their Champions to ensure regular
feedback and dialogue from and between Services.
Property Implications
112.

The property implications are to be found throughout this report.

Other Implications
113.
PL 20.114 C

None.

Page 108

Options Considered
114.

None.

Conclusions
115.

The Build the Change programme is a central part of SAMP and the
delivery of a modern council providing good quality services to residents.

116.

Since the March 2020 CPIP report, the programme has moved quickly and
professionally to progress the Housing Hub at Edmonton and the Children
& Families Hub in Enfield Town.

117.

The recommendations in this report represent the most favourable financial
option to ensure the council maintains fit for purpose office space.

118.

The proposal reduces the need substantial investment in upgrading other
buildings and offers the opportunity to secure income from the repurposing
of those buildings.

119.

The decision will allow operational savings that have been identified in the
MTFP to be achieved.

Report Author:

Mark Bradbury
Director of Property and Economy
Mark.bradbury@enfield.gov.uk
02083791451

Date of report

12th April 2021

Appendices
Confidential Appendix

Background Papers
None.

PL 20.114 C

Page 109
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 111

Agenda Item 9

London Borough of Enfield
Cabinet Meeting 21st April 2021

Subject:

Tendering Extra Care Service

Cabinet Member:

Cllr Alev Cazimoglu

Executive Director of People: Tony Theodoulou
Key Decision:

KD 5184

Purpose of Report
1

Extra care housing supports Adult Social Care (ASC) priorities for
Older People in Enfield by reducing the number of people who go into
long term residential and nursing care as well as reducing the number
of preventable hospital readmissions. It also facilitates timely hospital
discharge and enable people to die at home with dignity in a supported
environment.

2

In June 2020 the Strategic Service Development and Procurement
Board agreed that the Extra Care Services provided at Alcazar Court
and Skinners Court be put out to tender to ensure effective
competition, value and quality of service provision for both schemes
are maintained.

3

Specifications for both schemes were updated. Service users and their
families and carers have been actively involved in the procurement
process through workshops and surveys undertaken at the schemes.

4

The procurement was undertaken in line with the Council’s Contract
Procedure Rules and the Public Contract Regulations (2015). The
value of the contract for Alcazar Court is £3.479m for a 3+2+2 year
contract. The value of the contract for Skinner Court is £3.515m for a
3+2+2 year contract. The option to extend will be at the sole discretion
of the Council and will be subject to the satisfactory performance of the
provider.

5

This report recommends that the Cabinet provides its acceptance of
the tenders and duly authorises the award of both contracts to the
successful Provider

Proposals
6

That Cabinet endorses and agrees to award a 3+2+2 year contract for
care and support services at Alcazar Court Extra Care Housing

Page 112
Scheme and Skinners Court Extra Care Housing Scheme respectively,
to the successful service Provider outlined in the corresponding Part 2
Appendix to this report on the basis outlined in paragraph 4 of this
report.
7

That a Cabinet Member agrees to the formal approval of the 2+2 year
extensions periods of the contracts for both Alcazar Court and
Skinners Court, subject to satisfactory performance

Reason for Proposal
8

The provision of Extra Care accommodation has been and continues
to be a priority for the Council. It delivers a model of care which
promotes independent living for a range of vulnerable people who
would otherwise be at risk of social isolation, admission to hospital or
residential care.

Relevance to the Council’s Plan
9

Good homes in well-connected neighbourhood.


Extra Care increases housing choice for adults with support
and care needs living in the London Borough of Enfield. It
allows for good quality, specialist accommodation options to
meet the changing needs of existing and emerging
communities



Having good quality, specialist accommodation options to
meet the changing needs of existing and emerging
communities.

Sustain strong and Healthy Communities


The initiative supports families/carers, including hard-toreach groups to have good access to specialist
accommodation options in the London Borough of Enfield,
so they are empowered to make informed decisions about
where and how they are supported to live.



Extra Care enables older adults with support and care needs
to live as fulfilling, independent, healthy lives and contribute
to the prevention and early intervention agenda through the
development of specialist accommodation options to avoid
the need of residential care

To Build our local economy to create a thriving place


Maximise opportunities for independent living by improving
the quality, design and accessibility of specialist
accommodation for older people.

Page 113


Better understand the changing aspirations of older people
in the London Borough of Enfield with regard to specialist
accommodation services.



Support the development of modern, innovative
accommodation models that extend choice and empower
vulnerable adults to take control of the services they receive
in line with the Personalisation agenda and policy direction.



Ensure the availability of culturally accessible and socially
inclusive specialist accommodation services to support
Enfield’s diverse population of older people and facilitate
community cohesion.



Ensure the availability of accommodation services for older
people in the borough that effectively meet the specialist or
acute needs of those with long-term conditions, including
dementia and stroke, and to appropriately support end-of-life
care.

Reason for Proposal
10 In providing this Model, a number of outcomes for Service Users should be

achieved, under-pinned through the Council’s ethos of Extra Care, which is
“providing well-designed housing that enables people to self-care for longer
and gives them access to care of their choosing as unobtrusively as possible
to help them retain independence.” The outcomes associated with this Model
are therefore:
 Working in Partnership – Provider(s) will bring their own specialist skills
and knowledge and create links to the Extra Care community and with
statutory health and social care services.
 Respecting Diversity Working in partnership with Service Users, families
and colleagues to provide care that not only make a positive difference but
also do so in ways that respect and value diversity. People are supported
to learn or relearn skills which promote independence and to make
informed choices within their home environment
 Enabling Independence: Service Users will maintain as much
independence as possible by adopting an enabling approach to supporting
them in daily living and hence improving their quality of life;
 Feeling Safe & Secure: However, there will be an appropriate balance
between managing risk, choice & safeguarding for individuals and for
others; and Service Users should feel that support is provided as safely &
securely as they need;
 Being Healthy, Clean & Comfortable: Service Users will be facilitated
and supported to be as healthy and well as they can, and be clean and
comfortable in the delivery of care at all times;
 Treated with Dignity & Respect in a Person-Centred Way: Service
Users will always be treated with dignity in a way that respects their
individual social, cultural, ethnic, religious etc. needs and be at the centre
of planning, choosing, managing and financing the care & support that’s
right for them;

Page 114


11

Having Company & Contact and Feeling Engaged: Service Users will
be facilitated to have as much company & contact with others as they feel
they need and are facilitated to take part in activities and interests that are
important to them, including in the wider community
The proposal will inject healthy competition within care market and ensure
value for money and quality of services to service users as well as further
enhancement through new specifications and contractual arrangement.

Background:
12

Extra care housing is a supported housing option which improves the lives
of vulnerable older adults with a range of housing related support
(Support) and adult social care (Care) needs. It balances independent
living with an enhanced sense of security. Service users receive support
to manage their tenancies and also have access to a 24hr onsite care
service.

13

There is no single definitive model for extra care. Local authorities can
decide how they wish to commission and implement extra care to meet
their own local priorities.

14

Extra care housing supports the Health Housing Adult Social Care
(HHASC) Commissioning Vision for Older People in the London Borough
of Enfield by reducing the number of people who go into long term
residential & nursing care as well as reducing the number of preventable
hospital readmissions. It also facilitates timely hospital discharge and
enables people to die at home with dignity in a supported environment.

15

There are two Extra Care Schemes directed provided by Adult Social
Care.
The first scheme Alcazar Court Extra Care Scheme is located at 2 St
Mary's Road, Edmonton, London, N9 8NZ. It provides 45 units of
accommodation for vulnerable older adults including 3 two-bedroom units
and 2 units specifically as a short-stay, enablement option. The main
client group is “older adults” However those with additional needs such as
learning disabilities, dementia and other neurological conditions may also
access the service where they are able to live independently with support
under the terms of their tenancy agreement.

16

The premises and freehold are owned by the landlord, Clarion. An off-site
housing management service is provided by Clarion. Service users live at
the scheme under a tenancy agreement. The care and support provider
provide the onsite point of liaison between service users and Clarion.

17

The second scheme Skinners Court Extra Care Scheme is located at 1
Pellipar Close, Fox Lane, Palmers Green, London, N13 4AE. It provides
43 units of single accommodation and 5 units of 2-bedroom
accommodation. Skinner’s Company hold the freehold to the facility. The
Housing Management is provided by Anchor Hanover under a two-year
contractual arrangement with Skinners Company and provide the
housing related support to the service users living within the Extra Care

Page 115
Scheme. Skinners Company also retain 25% of nomination rights to the
accommodation within Skinner’s Court. Service users live at the scheme
under a licence agreement.
18

The current Extra Care Service at both schemes is delivered by North
London Care and Support Ltd. They initially quoted and won a one-year
contract for Skinners Court, which expired in March 2019 and April 2019
for Alcazar Court. The Individual Service Fund (ISF) model was then
introduced where 75% of the service users at both schemes agreed to
have North London Home Care and Support Ltd undertake their care
arrangements under their individual ISF agreement. As part of the ISF
arrangement North London Home Care works with each service user to
develop a personalised and flexible service in accordance to the details
within their support plan and the service user controls how, when and
where their care and support is provided.

19

The Extra Care ISF are monitored on a quarterly basis by the Enfield
Brokerage Team and regular ISF meetings takes place with the Service
Development Manager for Older People and North London Homecare. In
the past three years, there has been no major concerns with the services
provided within each scheme.

20

In June 2020 the Strategic Service Development and Procurement Board
agreed that the Extra Care Services provided at Alcazar Court and
Skinners Court be put out to tender to ensure effective competition, value
and quality of service provision for both schemes are maintained. The new
contract is scheduled to commence on June 2021.

21

A project board was established to work to a project plan. This board
Includes






Procurement Officer
Legal Representative
2 Team Managers from Integrated Locality Team (ILT)
Quality Manager from Brokerage
Service Development Manager, Older People

22

A market testing exercise was undertaken to establish interest and a
potential price for both services. 5 Domiciliary organisations and 3 local
authorities responded to the market testing questionnaire.

23

In September 2020 an independent workshop for service users and their
relatives was undertaken. This was to establish what was important to
users and their families in terms of the care and support and to ensure the
information was included within the final specification. The workshop
sessions were held at both schemes using their garden areas in a COVID
19 managed environment. The workshop was then followed up with
survey, again aimed at service users and their relatives. The workshop
notes and survey were analysed by and Independent advisor working with
the Institute of Public Care (IPC).

Page 116
24

The specification for both services were reviewed, updated and agreed by
the Project Board, Head of Service for Strategy and Resources and a
Service Manager from Strategy and Resources. Two contracts were to be
developed each with conditions as with an ISF, relating to how the
provider must engage with service users and families and provide
evidence of choice, control and flexibility. The specification includes the
final annual budget:Alcazar Court £497K for 569 hours per week
Skinner Court £502K for 575 hours per week
Total annual budget £999K
The new contracts for both schemes are for a 3+2 +2 years.

25

It was agreed to procure both services as individual Lots. This means
potential providers could base their tender on one or both of the schemes.
The procurement was undertaken in line with the Councils Contract
Procedure Rules and UK & EU regulations

Main Considerations for the Council
26

The ISF agreement for Skinners Court expired on 31st March 2021 and for
Alcazar Court 30th April 2021.

27

In providing this Model, a number of outcomes for Service Users should
be achieved, under-pinned through the Council’s ethos of Extra Care,
which is “providing well-designed housing that enables people to self-care
for longer and gives them access to care of their choosing as
unobtrusively as possible to help them retain independence.

28

Evidence indicates that well managed extra care sites will typically result
in fewer people requiring admission to hospital. This reduces pressure on
the health care system as well as avoiding the higher levels of social care
expenditure typically required following hospital discharge, as well as of
course being better for people’s wellbeing and independence.

29

The market testing exercise demonstrated a buyout care market with a
high interest of both local and national care providers who were able to
meet the requirements of current specification. Tendering the Extra Care
service could help to further build on quality service provision and best
value for the Council.

Safeguarding Implications
30

Extra Care housing is designed to support older people who have social
care needs. It balances independent living with an enhanced sense of
security and care aided by the use of assistive technology. With onsite 24hour care it supports vulnerable people to live safely and independently in the

community and by doing so enable them to live healthy and fulfilling lives
and achieve their full potential.

Page 117

Public Health Implications
31

Extra Care accommodation with care and support can positively impact on
public health outcomes, including reductions in social isolation and/or
loneliness; improved nutrition and hydration; increased wellbeing for
residents participating in activities, such as exercise classes, and
minimising the ill effects of fuel poverty and/or seasonal health risks.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal
32

A Predictive EIA has been undertaken. Identified impacts at this stage
centre on improved service user experience and outcomes, more people
remaining independent within their own homes for longer and further
consideration needed of people's natural communities.

33

The proposed contracts will require the successful provider(s) to deliver
services which are culturally and gender sensitive by providing cultural
awareness training for all staff and matching specific language
requirements where possible.

34

The specification for the schemes requires the successful organisation(s)
to provide training for all staff in areas that will raise awareness of issues
faced by vulnerable people from different ethnic backgrounds.

35

The successful organisation(s) will be monitored to ensure they are
complying with these requirements through checking of their records,
regular review of services, obtaining service user feedback, monthly
monitoring meetings and provision of quarterly performance information to
the Council.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations
36

Any provider commissioned to undertake extra care provision will have to
demonstrates systems and processes to manage their impacts on the
environment. They will be required to provide data to demonstrate their
environmental improvements throughout the duration of the contract

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken
37

Due to the sums involved failure to tender the services may not conform to
Procurement regulations as well as demonstrate best value.

38

The existing provider has served notice, so we require a new provider to
be able to continue the provision of care.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will
be taken to manage these risks

Page 118
39

A new contract may present opportunities for the Council to improve
service user’s quality of life and independence and secure efficiencies.
However, the new tender process may create anxiety amongst
stakeholder and service users throughout the tender process and have an
undesirable effect on transition arrangement for the council. This risk will
be carefully monitored throughout the tendering process supported by
continuous effective communication with all stakeholders involved.

Financial Implications
40

The tender specification does change the current 569 hours for Alcazar
Court and 575 hours for Skinners Court per annum. The tender
specification price and the revised budget will be £497k for Alcazar Court
and £502k for Skinner Court, a total of £999k per annum.
The duration of the contract is up to seven years as stated above,
however, there may be annual changes to the contract price which will be
agreed between the Council’s commissioners and the provider which may
change the budget in future years

Legal Implications
41

.
S.111 Local Government Act (1972) gives a local authority power to
do anything (whether or not involving the expenditure, borrowing or
lending of money or the acquisition or disposal of any property or rights)
which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the
discharge of any of its functions.
The Council also has a general power of competence in s.1(1) Localism
Act (2011) which states that a local authority has the power to do anything
that individuals generally may do provided it is not prohibited by legislation
The Council has carried out all procurement exercises in accordance with
its Contract Procedure Rules (“CPRs”) and, where applicable, the Public
Contracts Regulations (2015) (“PCRs (2015)”).
In awarding any contracts the Council must continue to adhere to the
PCRs (2015), its CPRs and in particular the requirement of CPR 4.2 which
states that no contract may be awarded unless there is sufficient budget
available for the goods, supplies, services or works being procured and
appropriate delegated authority to award the contract, has been provided.
The Council must comply with (and continue to comply with) its obligations
relating to obtaining best value under the Local Government (Best Value
Principles) Act 1999. In accordance with CPR 4.3 the officer awarding the
contract has a duty to demonstrate that best value has been obtained.
Further, officers must ensure value for money is being obtained
throughout the lifetime of a contract and must comply with CPR 26 which
provides guidance on contract management.

Page 119
The Council must ensure compliance at all times with its Constitution. As
this is a Key Decision the Council must comply with the Key Decision
procedure.
Any legal agreements (and ancillary documents where relevant) arising
from the matters described in this report must be approved in advance of
contract commencement by Legal Services on behalf of the Director of
Law and Governance.
In respect of any contract with a value of £1m and over (as is the case
here), the Council’s CPRs (7.2) state that the contractor must be required
to provide sufficient security. In accordance with CPR 7.3 ‘sufficient
security’, means one of the following:
(i) parent company, ultimate holding company or holding company
guarantee where their finances prove acceptable;
(ii) director’s guarantee or personal guarantee where their finances prove
acceptable;
(iii) performance bond, retained funds or cash deposit; or
(iv) any other security as determined by Financial Management Services
and/or Legal Services.
Evidence of the form of security required or why no security was required
must be stored on the E-Tendering Portal for audit purposes. The Council
should liaise with the Procurement & Commissioning Hub for assistance
on this.
The Council will owe duties under the Care Act (2014) to the occupiers of
the Extra Care accommodation. Principally, the Council will be obligated to
ensure eligible care and support needs are met. Any failure to provide
services for the purposes of meeting eligible care and support needs is
likely to be unlawful. Securing the provision of care and support services
will help the Council fulfil its legal responsibilities to the occupiers.
Workforce Implications
42

Not applicable.

Property Implications
43

Not applicable.

Other Implications
44

Any procurement must be undertaken in accordance with the
Councils Contract Procedure Rules (CPR’s) and the Public Contracts
Regulations (2015).
The award of the contract, including evidence of authority to award,
promoting to the Councils Contract Register, and the uploading of
executed contracts must be undertaken on the London Tenders
Portal including future management of the contract.

Page 120

All awarded projects must be promoted to Contracts Finder to comply
with the Government’s transparency requirements.
A restricted tender procedure was chosen due to anticipated high
levels of interest from the market and it was agreed to procure both
services as individual Lots.
A market testing exercise was undertaken to establish interest and a
potential pricing for services. 5 Domiciliary Providers and 3 local
authorities responded to the market testing questionnaire.
The Council advertised the tender opportunity in 11th September
2020. 39 organisations expressed an interest at SQ stage. 11 were
shortlisted to tender stage based on the responses to SQ.
7 tenders were returned for evaluation. Criteria where 60% Quality
(based on responses to Method Statements) and 40% Price.
The CPR’s state that a contract of this size must have a nominated
contract manager in the LTP, and a contract management plan be
put in place and evidence of contract management loaded into the
LTP. It is vital that robust contract management take place to ensure
that service delivery meets quality and contractual standards. That
charges and billing are in line with the contractual agreed pricing.
Evidence of monitoring of Modern Slavery and equalities should also
be evidenced.

Options Considered
45

The alternative option considered was: a) To continue to with the ISF arrangement.
This option could be considered as it is currently working well with good
partnership arrangement with service users and North London Homecare
and Support Ltd. However, the current structure and arrangement are
hindered as personal budgets are pooled and not given to the service
users individually to service their ISF. In addition, the current provider
does not administer the personal budget.
b) Should personal budgets be distributed to all
purchase their care as an ISF this may result in
coming on site which may cause a number
management, responsibility and accountability.
users and staff at increased risk of COVID 19.

the service users to
a number of providers
of risks in terms of
It also places service

c) To give all service users a Direct Payment to organise their own care.

This will have the same impact as b) with a lack of management to
oversee and co-ordinate a number of care providers entering the
schemes.

Page 121

46

To expose Alcazar Court Extra Care and Skinners Court Extra Care
Services to the open care market through a competitive tendering exercise
may inject healthy competition within care market and ensure value for
money and quality of services to service users as well as further
enhancement through new specifications and contractual arrangement.

Conclusions
47

In June 2020 the Strategic Service Development and Procurement Board
agreed that the Extra Care Services provided at Alcazar Court and Skinners
Court be put out to tender to ensure effective competition, value and quality
of service provision for both schemes are maintained. The new contract is
scheduled to commence on June 2021

48

The proposal in this report is for Cabinet to endorse and agree to award a
contract for Extra Care & Support Services at Alcazar Court Extra Care
Housing Scheme for a period of 3 years from June 2021 to May 2024 (with
the option to extend for 2 years to May 2026 plus a further 2 years to May
2028) and to endorse and agree to award a contract for Extra Care &
Support Services at Skinners Court Extra Care Housing Scheme for a
period of 3 years from June 2021 to May 2024 (with the option to extend for
2 years to May 2026 plus a further 2 years to May 2028).

Report Author:
Nancie Alleyne
Date of report 19 March 2021
Appendices
Part 2
Background Papers
The following documents have been relied on in the preparation of this
report:
Cabinet Report from Cabinet meeting held on 18th October 2017

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 123
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 127

Agenda Item 10

THE CABINET
Draft list of Items for future Cabinet Meetings
(NOTE: The items listed below are subject to change.)
NEW MUNICIPAL YEAR 2021/2022
1.

Sustainable and Ethical Procurement Policy

Sarah Cary

The Council is developing a new Sustainable and Ethical Procurement
Policy. This policy will set out how the Council will secure social,
environmental and economic value through procurement and set
expectations for the Council’s suppliers to achieve this. (Key decision –
reference number 5291)
2.

Tenancy Strategy

Sarah Cary

This will seek approval to revise the Enfield Council Tenancy Strategy. (Key
decision – reference number 5268)
3.

Meridian Water Community Chest Fund

Sarah Cary

This will consider and approve the governance processes, approvals and
timetables for distributing the Meridian Water Community Chest funding
secured from the Meridian Water development. (Key decision – reference
number 5293)
4.

Montagu Industrial Estate – Resolution for a Compulsory
Purchase Order (CPO)

Sarah Cary

This will seek approval for a resolution to make a CPO for the redevelopment
of the Montagu Industrial Estate in order to provide modern, fit for purpose
business space. (Key decision – reference number 5121)
5.

Policy Framework for Healthy Streets in Enfield

Sarah Cary

This will set out the policy framework for Healthy Streets in Enfield. (Key
decision – reference number 5246)
6.

Meridian Water Estate Management and
Place keeping Strategy

Sarah Cary

This will seek approval of a management place keeping strategy for Meridian
Water, delivered by a new arms-length Estate Management company which
will seek best value for residents. (Key decision – reference number 5309)

Effective date 13.4.2021

This page is intentionally left blank

